
TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

Wednesday, June 6, 2018, 7:00 PM 

NEWMARKET TOWN HALL CHAMBERS 

6PM NON-PUBLIC MEETING PURSUANT TO RSA 91-A:3,II(a, d) - 1 .  The 
dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the disciplining of such 
employee 2.Consideration of the acquisition, sale or lease of real or personal property. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public F orum 

3. Town Council to Consider Acceptance of Minutes 

a. May 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

b. May 16, 2018 Non-Public Meeting Minutes 

4. Report of the Town Administrator 

a. Town Administrator's Report for June 6, 2018 

b. Presentation by the Director of Envirorunental Services on 20 Year Capital Plan 

5. Committee Reports 

6. Old Business 

a. Resolutions/Ordinances in the 2nd Reading 

z. Resolution #201712018-47 - to Increase the ITT,ter Rate 50 Cents 

ii. Resolution #201712018-48 Purchase of3 Motorola Radios (Police, Fire and 
Backup) with 6x8 structure 

b. Resolutions/Ordinances in the 3rd reading 

c. Items Laid on the Table 

7. New Business/Correspondence 

a. Town Council to Consider Nominations, Appointments and Elections 

i. Michael LaBmnche - NCDC Member - Term Expires December 2018 

b. Resolutions/Ordinances in the 1st Reading 

Page 1 of 86



i. Resolution #2017/2018-49- Tiger House Repairs a11d Pai11ting 

ii. Resolutio11 #2017/2018-50 - Police Station Parki11g Drai11age a11d Pavement 

Repairs 

iii. Resol11tio11 #2017/2018-51 - Newmarket Eleme11ta1y School Resource Officer 

A public hearing will be held on this resolution at the Jnne 20 Town Conncil 
meeting 

iv. Ordinance No. 4 2017/2018-An Ordina11ceAmendi11g Chanter 30 ofthe 
Code ofthe Town o(Newmarket. New Hampshire; Making Ce11ter Street 

Tm(Jic Two-Wav 

A public hearing will be held on this ordinance at the Jnne 20 Town Council 
meeting 

v. 01·dinance No. 5 2017!2018-A11 OrdimmceAmending Chapter 30 ofthe 

Code of The Town o(Newmarket. New Hampshire; Making Church Street 
Tm(Jic One-Wav (Westerly) 

A public hearing will be held on this ordinance at the June 20 Town Council 
meeting 

c. Correspondence to the Town Council 

d. Closing Comments by Town Councilors 

e. Next Council Meeting 

i. J1me 20. 2018 

The June 20, 2018 Meeting will be a Regular Meeting 

8. J\djourUlllent 

Page 2 of 86



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

7 MAY 16, 2018 7:00PM 

8 

9 

10 
11 PRESENT: Council Chairman Dale Pike, Council Vice Chairman Toni Weinstein, Councilor Zachary 

12 Dumont, Councilor Kyle Bowden, Councilor Amy Burns, Councilor Casey Finch 

13 

14 EXCUSED: Councilor Gretchen Kast 

15 
16 ALSO PRESENT: Town Administrator Steve Fournier, Town Planner Diane Hardy, Jim Weber of the NH DES 

17 Dam Bureau, Macallen Dam Study Committee Chairman Bill Arcieri, Dam Study Committee Member Bob 

18 Sheehan, Cheri Patterson of NH Fish & Game, Todd Munson of GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc., Facilities 

19 Director Greg Maries, 

20 

21 

22 

23 Chairman Dale Pike welcomed everyone to the May 16, 2018 Newmarket Town Council Meeting and 

24 called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
25 
26 PUBLIC FORUM 

27 
28 Chairman Pike opened the Public Forum at 7:01 pm. 

29 
30 Mr. Glenn Traquair of 156A Exeter Road spoke on efforts to bring a Rights-Based Ordinance {RBO) to 

31 Newmarket, which would basically protect the community from environmental threats from corporations. 

32 He said though Newmarket may already be protected by the NH DES or the NH Department of Health & 

33 Human Services, New Hampshire has the highest rate of breast cancer in the country and 2"' highest 

34 bladder cancer rate. He stated that the Coakley Landfill registered as having the highest rate of PFCs in 

35 the country and efforts had been made to quell that information. Other examples of contamination were 

36 Saint-Gobain in Merrimack, NH and the Pease Air Force Base in Portsmouth, NH. He said the Newmarket 

37 Town Charter did not give its citizens the right of protecting their environment, and though an RBO would 

38 be an act of civil disobedience, it was about the Town's rights of democracy. He said a NH Community 
39 Rights Amendment, seeking to protect already existing ina l ienable rights to local democracy, gained 

40 support in the NH House this year, and said Newmarket residents were working to prevent future chemical 

41 trespass from coming into their local waters. 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

AGENDA 

Page 3 of 86



Town Council Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2018 

42 
43 Representative Ellen Read of 283 Lita Lane stated that she was one of the State Representatives for the 
44 Town of Newmarket, and was there to talk about the proposed Rights-Based Ordinance (RBO). She said it 
45 was her understanding that the Council would be provided later with the idea that an RBO is 
46 unconstitutional, as the State does not have Home Rule. She stated that a town could pass an RBO, which 
47 several other towns in NH had done already, none of which had been constitutionally challenged. She 
48 stated that she was the prime sponsor of a Constitutional Amendment that went before the NH House 
49 this year that would have sent a valid question to all people in the State asking if the State Constitution 
50 should be amended to essentially protect a town's rights to pass RBOs, laws that protect the health, safety, 
51 and welfare of people or their natural environments. She said the NH House normally required 3/5 
52 passage and they gotten over a third approval in the Sub-Committee, with a 3-2 vote in the Committee, 
53 which would have explicitly protected a town's rights to pass an RBO. She said she intended to continue 
54 to work on the amendment next year, with a possible ballot question on this issue in the next 2 years. 

55 
56 Mr. Terry Martin of 212 South Main Street stated that he was in favor of this RBO, and said his first 
57 exposure to water contamination affecting area residents was from 2 articles in the Pease Quarterly from 
58 lastJune . He said one of the articles stated that a Federal agency had dropped its plans to release a shorter 
59 version of a feasibility assessment for a potential health study for people exposed to city water 
60 contaminated by PFCs at the former Pease Air Force Base. He said in May of 2014 the Air Force found 
61 dangerous levels of PFAS chemicals and closed the Haven Well. He said the second article addressed the 
62 efforts of Senator Jeanne Shaheen to assist in getting something done about the Pease Air Force Base 
63 contamination, and to find the best way to fund the needed health study in the Seacoast Region. In a 
64 recent email she stated that Pease had been selected for inclusion in a critical national study on the impact 
65 of PFAS compounds. Mr. Martin said he had also just learned about the Town of Nottingham, NH adopting 
66 a Water Rights & Self-Government Ordinance in 2008, after fighting a losing battle against USA Springs, 
67 LLC. He said no legal action had been taken against the Town of Nottingham RBO and they were 
68 considering a second one with regard to toxic waste disposal and chemical trespass. 

69 

70 Ms. Pia Bickford of 14 Ham Street said she had been reading about corporations dumping hazardous 
71 chemicals in surrounding communities. She said the Coakley Landfill was told they needed to install a 
72 treatment system for their waste runoff, but after EPA lobbying the Department of Environmental Services 
73 group allowed them to forego adding this system. She said monitoring of wells in Greenland and North 
74 Hampton found PFOS levels 20 x higher than the EPA Health Advisory Level and nearly 3 x higher in Berry's 
75 Brook in Rye. She said these chemicals were carcinogens and a pediatric brain cancer cluster was found 
76 in that vicinity. She said she also read about a $100 mil lion lawsuit that Pease Development Authority was 
77 settling for knowingly discharging contaminants into waterways and Great Bay. She stated that EPA and 
78 White House officials had failed to release CDC data which showed PFCs threaten human health at a lower 
79 level that currently thought safe. She said a local RBO is a way to protect communities against the financial 
80 interests of corporations taking precedent and priority over the health and safety of Newmarket citizens, 
81 and she asked the Town Council to use their authority and ability to help keep the Town safe. 

82 
83 Monica Christofilli of 6 Central Street thanked the Town Council for their service to Newmarket. She said 
84 she was cofounder of the community group Alliance for Newmarket Citizen & Ecosystem Rights (ANCER), 
85 and they would like to bring a Rights-Based Ordinance (RBO) to Town vote so the people of Newmarket 

2 

Page 4 of 86



Town Council Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2018 

86 could democratically choose whether to adopt a local law that would protect the Lamprey River and the 
87 Great Bay watershed from future corporate chemical trespass. She said the Town Administrator had 
88 shared a summary of the opinion of the Town Attorney on this RBO, which said the people of Newmarket 
89 were not allowed by the State and would not be allowed by the Town Council to vote on this RBO as the 
90 State did not have home rule and the Town Charter gave no pathway to ask the Town Council to let them 
91 vote on the issue. 
92 
93 Ms. Christofilli said NH was a Dillon's Rule state where municipalities cannot adopt local laws unless the 
94 State tells them they can. She said ANCER recognized that Article 3 of the State Constitution, the NH Bil l 
95 of Rights, says that in a state of society citizens give up some rights in return for protections, and if those 
96 protections are not received, the re l inquishment of rights is void and they can take back those rights. She 
97 said Article 8 of the NH Bill of Rights states that all power resides originally in and derives from the people, 
98 and Article 10 was the Right of Revolution if public liberty were manifestly endangered. She said the 
99 peop le of Newmarket have an inalienab le and inherent right to protect their health, safety, and welfare 

100 and to change government in order to serve this protection, and the Town Council could not take this 

101 right away. 
102 
103 Ms. Christofilli said Newmarket residents have no local pathway to directly cast their right to vote on a 
104 local matter that concerns them, like wanting local protection in place to prevent chemical contamination 
105 of local waters. She said the Council was the body of elected officials chosen by the people to protect the 
106 things they rely on, like water, and said the opinion of the Town Attorney did not represent the people. 
107 She said of the 11 towns that have adopted RBOs in NH over the last 12 years, not one has been challenged 
108 and they have forced corporations to propose better, safer projects. She said they stood on their rights 
109 affirmed in the NH Bill of Rights to establish a new form of government based on the right of residents to 
110 govern their communities . She challenged the Council and the Town Administrator to make a fully 
111 informed decision by actively seeking opinions other than that of the Town Attorney. She said that along 
112 with ANCER, she invited the Town Council to place this issue on their agenda for a 20-minute public 
113 presentation at an upcoming meeting, and said she looked forward to their invitation in return. 

114 
115 Chairman Pike closed the Public Forum at 7:26 pm. 
116 
117 PUBLIC HEARING - Resolution #2017 /18-46 Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter into an 
118 Agreement with GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. for Final Design and Engineering Services Related to the 
119 Rehabilitation of the Macallen Dam 
120 
121 Town Planner Diane Hardy said she was there on behalf of the Macallen Dam Study Committee asking for 
122 consent and concurrence on the chosen Preferred Alternative for addressing the Dam issue. She said she 
123 wanted to recognize Jim Weber of the NHDES Dam Committee who they had worked closely with over 

124 the last 4 years, Cheri Patterson from NH Fish & Game, and Dam Committee Chairman Bill Arcieri and 
125 committee member Bob Sheehan, as well as consultant Todd Munson of GZA Geo Environmental, Inc. 

126 
127 Town P lanner Hardy said that GZA GeoEnvironmental was hired over a year ago to do some conceptual 
128 designs and look at alternatives to address the letter of deficiency from the NH DES with regard to the dam 
129 received in 2008. She said the Town looked at removal of the dam and hired a consultant to do a feasibility 

3 

Page 5 of 86



Town Council Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2018 

130 study, then in 2014 decided instead to look at repair and rehabilitation of the dam. She said the proposal 
131 before the Council tonight was the preferred alternative to replace the existing antiquated gate structure 
132 with a pneumatic-operated gate system, along with some repairs to the side walls and raising the left 
133 abutment for means to secure the dam during high-peak flood period. 

134 
135 Mr. Todd Munson of GZA GeoEnviromental, Inc. said the company was hired in July of 2017 to develop 
136 conceptual alternatives to address deficiencies cited in the letter of 2010, and said he would provide a 
137 brief overview of the progress made by the Macallen Dam Committee and go over the proposed next 
138 steps for the project. He said they were focusing on the technical engineering aspects to specifically 
139 address the stability of the dam and the inadequate spillway capacity. He said moving forward they 
140 pl anned to coordinate and cooperate with multiple stake-holders, including abutters and NH Fish & Game, 
141 who own the property adjacent to the dam and operate the fish ladder. 
142 
143 Mr. Munson said GZA was hired specifically to address the inadequate spillway capacity by developing 
144 alternatives to raising the abutment walls and to assure dam stability. He said the work stemmed from an 
145 obligation by the Town of Newmarket to address safety, most notably the deteriorated abutment walls, 
146 the deteriorated wooden gate structure and its inability to seal properly, and the inadequate spillway 
147 capacity to meet the design storm standards. He said the Preferred Alternative was to demolish the 
148 existing gate structure and replace it with an automated pneumatic steel Crest Gate to prevent blockage. 
149 He said the stone block pier on the left side would remain in place and a concrete abutment poured. He 
150 said the abutments on the right side needed to be raised approximately 3 feet, and said the Crest Gate 
151 would lower the target water elevation for the abutments. 
152 
153 Mr. Munson said the gate was a bottom-hinged Crest Gate with an air pressure-based system, having a 
154 bladder life-expectancy of approximately 30 years, at which time just the bladder could be replaced.  He 
155 said they looked at mu ltip le other alternatives of raising/constructing the abutment walls, and said a 6- 
156 foot abutment obstructed views and was not recommended. He said a scope of services for GZA for the 
157 preferred alternative would continue the proposed design including Final Design, field investigations, 
158 permitting, and bidd ing support services. He said the proposal was submitted to the Dam Committee for 
159 review a long  with an outlined schedule for future work. 

160 
161 Mr. Munson said GZA would begin the engineering f inal  design by July 2018, submit permits in the fall, 
162 and submit a Construction Bond to the Town Meeting in March 2019. He said they would then move 
163 through the bidding process and he anticipated a summer 2019 contract award, with construction ending  
164 in late October 2019. Chairman Pike added that when the Dam Committee selected the preferred 
165 alternative, they chose the lowest estimated cost for the best aesthetic result. Mr. Munson said they 

166 would be continuing to work with all stake holders. 
167 
168 Cha irman Pike closed the Public Hearing at 7:40 pm. 
169 
170 TOWN COUNCIL TO CONSIDER ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

171 
172 Acceptance of the minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 2, 2018 

173 

4 

Page 6 of 86



Town Council Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2018 

174 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 2, 2018, 

175 which as seconded by Councilor Bowden. 

176 
177 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 2, 2018 

178 were approved by a vote of 6-0. 

179 
180 REPORT OF THE TOWN ADMINSTRATOR 

181 
182 Town Administrator Steve Fournier said that Tax Bills had gone out and were due on July 2, 2018. He said 
183 as previously brought up in Public Forum, the Alliance for Newmarket Citizens and Ecosystem Rights 
184 submitted a draft of their Citizens Rights Ordinance requesting the Town Council to enact or they would 
185 submit a petition warrant article to place on the ballot. He said he asked the Town Attorney to review the 
186 document and it was his opin ion that the Town cannot enact or enforce a Citizens Rights Ordinance that 

187 is a freedom from chemical trespass ordinance. 

188 
189 Town Administrator Fournier stated that New Hampshire was not a Home Rule state but a D i l lon's Rule 
190 state, and as such, munic ipalities could only adopt ordinances that the State permitted. He said as of now 
191 the State did not have a law allowing these ordinances and they would not be able to enforce it. He said 
192 as far as submitting a petition warrant article for the ballot, the Town of Newmarket was not a "Town 
193 Meeting" form of government but a council/administrative form of government with a budgetary Town 
194 Meeting, and only items that raise funds could be placed on the warrant unless it were State Law. He said 
195 that there was a division for initiative petitions which required 100 signatures, or a referendum petition 
196 that required 400 registered voter signatures. He said a Special Election would need to be held to consider 
197 the item, and they would still not have the authority to enforce the rules by State Law. 

198 
199 Town Administrator Fournier said they were removing oil from the Leaking Fuel Tank at the Wastewater 
200 Treatment Facility with an estimated cost of $2,900 to filter the oil for reuse. He said they received one 
201 quote from Gafteck for approximately $16,000 and were working on a second quote. He said they were 
202 working with Wright-Pierce to do a change order as part of the Wastewater Treatment project to see if 
203 they cou ld use those funds for a new boiler as part of the Wastewater Treatment Facility renovations. 

204 
205 Town Administrator Fournier said the Facilities Director had finished the Facilities Report and would make 
206 a presentation in June on the findings. He said as far as the FY2018 Budget Report, they ended April with 
207 83% of the year complete expending 80% of the Operating Budget and remained under-budget at this 
208 time. He said Revenues were a little tighter as they had been predicted higher, but were right on target. 

209 
210 Discussion: Vice-Chair Weinstein commented on the Building Report with regard to the statement that 9 
211 businesses were closing due to parking concerns, and felt this was not an accurate picture of the Town's 
212 parking situation. Town Administrator Fournier said he agreed. Vice-Chair Weinstein asked for a check on 
213 the heating system at the Community Center, and said she was aware they were addressing the lighting. 
214 She said also a meeting was held last night with the School Board, and she understood that the School 
215 Board voted to approve funds for a second Police Officer position at the School. She said she felt the 
216 Council should have a conversation on this issue at some point. 

217 

5 

Page 7 of 86



Town Council Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2018 

218 Town Administrator Fournier said all they had now was a vote of the School Board to raise funding. He 
219 said the next step would be for him to sit down with the Superintendent and the Police Chief and come 
220 up with some kind of agreement. He said the Town did not have funds to pay for the position, and the 
221 officer would report to the Chief of Police, whose role it was to decide where to place police officers, not 
222. the Town Council or the School Board. Chairman Pike asked about the implementation of the 
223 recommendations of the Facilities Report, and Town Administrator said the report just stated what facility 
224 repairs were needed and what years the Facilities Director was recommending they be done, and would 

225 probably be going into CIP. 

226 
227 Vice-Chair Weinstein said that Saturday, May 19, 2018 the Wastewater Treatment Facility would be 
228 holding an Open House from 9:00 am to noon for residents to take a tour of the new plant. Chairman Pike 
229 stated that the nitrogen level was going down and they were currently below the lower standard. 

230 
231 COMMITIEE REPORTS 
232 
233 Councilor Dumont announced that the Budget Committee had scheduled their next meeting for May 21, 
234 2018 due to Memorial Day being on May 28'h· 
235 
236 Chairman Pike said there was a Maco/fen Dam Committee meeting which was covered earlier. 

237 
238 OLD BUSINESS 
239 
240 ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN THE 2No READING 

241 
242 Resolution #2017 /18-46 Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter into an Agreement with GZA 
243 GeoEnvironmental, Inc. for Final Design and Engineering Services Related to the Rehabilitation of the 
244 Macallen Dam 
245 
246 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017/18-46 Authorizing the Town 
247 Administrator to Enter into an Agreement with GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. for Final Design and 
248 Engineering Services Related ta the Rehabilitation of the Maco/fen Dam, which was seconded by 
249 Councilor Burns. 
250 
251 Discussion: Councilor Finch said he had concerns with task 1 Project Coordination for $3,200, and task 2 
252 Project Kickoff for $8,400. Mr. Todd Munson explained that Project Coordination was the current project 
253 for conceptual design, covering some meetings. He said for the Kickoff they would sit down and officially 
254 discuss the final design and permitting, timelines, and review specific steps. Vice-Chair Weinstein said she 
255 was thril led the Town had been putting aside money for this project and would be withdrawing from the 
256 Maca l len Dam Fund . She asked if the $200,000 was part of the $1.2 million cost or in addition to it. Town 
257 Administrator Fournier said it was in addition to the $1.2 million which would most probably have to be 
258 bonded. Chairman Pike said they were saving money by providing some of their own oversight through 

259 Facilities Director Greg Maries. 

260 
261 ITEMS LAID ON THE TABLE - None 

262 

6 

Page 8 of 86



Town Council Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2018 

263 NEW BUSINESS /CORRESPONDENCE 
264 
265 TOWN COUNCIL TO CONSIDER NOMINATIONS, APPOINTMENTS AND ELECTIONS - None 

266 
267 ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN THE 15r READING 

268 
269 Resolution #2017/18-47 Resolution to Increase the Water Rate 50 Cents 
270 
271 Town Administrator Fournier read Resolution #2017/18-47 Resolution to Increase the Water Rate 50 

272 Cents in full. 
273 
274 Resolution #2017 /18-48 Purchase of 3 Motorola Radios (Police, Fire and Backup) with 6x8 Structure 

275 
276 Chairman Pike read Resolution #2017/18-48 Purchase of 3 Motorola Radios (Police, Fire and Backup) 

277 with 6x8 Structure in ful l . 
278 
279 CORRESPONDENCE- None 
280 
281 CLOSING COMMENTS 
282 
283 Vice-Chair Weinstein asked if backup could be provided on the first resolution as the report mentioned 
284 the 20-year Water Plan to increase water rates 50 cents/year for 10 years. She commented on the 
285 Newmarket Cares Day that took place the previous Friday, and said there was a sea of yellow shirts around 
286 Town and it was a fabulous project to be part of. She said they were at a dozen different sites, some 
287 private residences, and said the kids worked very hard. She thanked Patty Marsden for organizing the 
288 event. 
289 
290 Councilor Bowden said he would also like to thank Newmarket Cares for the work they did on Beanie 
291 Howcroft Field to help prepare the Snack Shack for full operation. 
292 
293 NEXT MEETING: The next Regular Town Council Meeting will be held on June 6, 2018 in the Town Council 

294 Chambers. 
295 
296 ADJOURNMENT 

297 
298 Chairman Pike adjourned the meeting at 8:09 pm. 
299 
300 Respectfully submitted, 

301 Patricia Denmark, Recording Secretary 

7 

Page 9 of 86



STEPHEN R. FOURNIER 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 

FOUNDED DECEMBER 15. 1727 

CHARTERED JANUARY I, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
OPFICE of the TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 

REPORT OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
June 6, 2018 

Proposed Street Changes: As many of the Councilors are aware, many of the streets in the downtown 
area on the hill are one-way. We had a request from one business to switch the direction of tbe one-way 
flow for Church Street. In addition, when the Department Heads and I were walking downtown to find 
any issues, we looked at Center Street. It was suggested that Center Street be turned into a two-way traffic 
flow. 

Both items were passed along to the Highway Safety Committee for review. The committee 
recommended both requests unanimously. On the agenda this evening for a first reading arc two 
ordinances allowing for these changes. They will both require public hearings at the next meeting. 

Bay Road Lot: The Bay Road municipal parking lot was reconstructed, and came out great. It will 
provide an additional 21 spaces for the downtown area. We are selling permits for the lot, as we do other 
municipal lots. Individuals with permits will be allowed to park overnight from JAM to SAM. Those 
without permits parking in the lot during those hours will be towed. The public can use any spaces 
between the hours of SAM to 1 AM. 

School Resource Officer for Elementary School: As was discussed briefly at the last meeting, the 
Newmarket School District has formally requested that the Chief of Police place a school resource officer 
in the elementary school. As part of this request, they will provide the Town $88,000 to fund the salary 

and benefits. 

On the agenda for a first reading is a resolution accepting the unanticipated revenue from the School 
District for $88,000 for hiring a police officer. This officer will be a fulltime employee of the Town of 
Newmarket and supervised by the Chief of Police, as the High School SRO is. 

Please note, pursuant to RSA IOS:2-a, the Chief of Police has "authority to direct and control all 
employees of his or her department in their normal course of duty" and is responsible to the chief 
administrative officer of the town. The Town Council does not have authority over the direction of 
officers in the department. 

Pursuant lo RSA 39-9Sb this will require a public hearing to accept unanticipated revenues. This will be 
scheduled at the next regular meeting. 

Leadership NH: I am pleased to inform the Town Council that I have been accepted as a member of the 

TOWN HALL • 186 MAIN STREET • NEWMARKET • NEW HAMPSHIRE • 03857 
TEL: (603) 659-3617 • FAX: (603) 659-8508 • sfournier@ncwmarketnh.gov 

w w w, newmurkctn h .gov 

Page 10 of 86



Class of 2019 for Leadership New Hampshire. Leadership New Hampshire is a program tbat "increases 
civic engagement and strengthen communities through connecting and educating a diverse pool of 
engaged or emerging leaders about the state of New Hampshire. Each year, 28-38 emerging and 
established leaders from across the state are selected for a comprehensive study of the communities, 
issues, challenges of the state, introduce them to and interact with policy makers, NPO's, business 
leaders, and citizens from homeowners to prison inmates: all for the purpose of "building a conununity of 
informed and engaged leaders.'1 

I would like to thank the Town Council for their support in my application process. 

Environmental Services Capital Program: The Director of Environmental Services will present the 20 

year CIP for the department. 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

***This section will not be reported on orally to the Town Council at the meeting, but will use this 
as a chance to update on any developments in ongoing projects. *** 

Out of Office: I will be attending the Municipal Managers of NH Association Annual Conference June 
13 - 15. I will be reachable. 

Facilities Report: I have asked him to make a presentation in June on the report. 

Downtown Parking: See Bay Road lot above. No word from NBA. 

Agenda Software: We are ready to go live. The Council will have access to the new system as well as 
old packets. Next will be training on meeting software like request to speak. 

Financial Software: We continue to meet to work on implementation. 

Splash Pad & Bath House Grant: No developments 

spectfully Submitted, 

Stephen R. Fournier 
Town Administrator 

Town Administrator's Report Page 2 

Page 11 of 86



- Learn, Connect, Serve 

May 29, 2018 

Dear Steve: 

Congratulations! You have been selected to become an Associate in the Leadership NH Class of 2019. You are being 

asked to join this outstanding class of Associates on the basis of your demonstrated achievement, community 

leadership, background qualifications, and experience. 

As in the past, the applicants were representative of many different areas in the state and various fields of work. With 

so many exceptionally well-qualified applicants, the selection process was particularly challenging. We are pleased with 

this response to our program. Your active participation and feedback during the coming year will assure an event 

stronger program in the future. You will receive a packet containing more details about your year, including the formal 

acceptance documents, next week. If you applied for financial aid assistance, you will receive a separate letter later this 

week indicating your award amount. 

We invite you to attend a Reception for the Class of 2019 on Tuesday, June 12'" at 6:00 p.m. It will be he ld at the home 

of Jim and Terry Steiner - 30 Oakmont Drive, Concord. The Reception will introduce you to your fellow Associates and 

the staff of LNH. Members of the Leadership New Hampshire Board of Trustees and Alumni will also be there to meet 

you. At the reception, we will be providing you with information about the upcoming program year. We will also be 

able to answers any questions you may have. 

Please hold September 111• and 12'", 2018 in your calendars as those are the dates of our mandatory overnight opening 
retreat. Additionally, we kindly request that you review the calendar for the year ahead and commit to missing no more 

than one to two full session days. If you do not feel confident in making that commitment, please reach out to the staff 

and we will discuss the potential conflicts with you. The draft calendar, which includes the confirmed dates but draft 

topics, can be found online at: http://www.leadershipnh.org/program-calendar.html 

We will be sharing the full listing of Class of 2019 through our social media outlets on Friday, June 1", but please feel 

free to share your acceptance into the program with colleagues, family, and friends before then. 

On behalf of LNH, we offer our sincere congratulations on your acceptance. If you have any questions, please feel free 

to contact either of us {allyson.ryder@leadershipnh.org I 603-848-4849 or Steve {stephen.reno@usnh.edu/603-969- 

3355). 

A formal letter acknowledging your acceptance will be arriving via mail in the coming weeks. 

Sincerely, 

Steve Reno 

Executive Director 

Allyson Ryder 

Associate Director 

Page 12 of 86



1.- 

(1) 
...... 

� 
"'O 

C'Cl 
0 

O'.'.'. 
>, 

C'Cl 

co 

co 
..-- 

0 
N 

I 

N 
..- 

I 

'<;j- 

c 
-- 
C'Cl 

� 
c 

ro 
- 
o, 

........ 

c 

� E 
en � 
$ e  
�  0.  
2  E  
ro  -  
S  ro  Q  Q)  =;;_  0  -- - - - - - - � .'. -  -"'  ro  ;  --------- -- --------- .... o ! --------- 
ro � i  
E © I  
s 1u : 
� s  I  

s......  !  

ro  i  

�  I  
I  :  

0  !  

N  i  
:  

i  
:  

I  
i  
i  
:  

!  
i  
i  

l  

i  Page 13 of 86



+-' 
c 
Q) 
E 
Q) 
> 
0 5..... 
0. 

E 
- 

- ro 
+-' 

0. 
ro 
0 

"O 
c 
ro 
Q) 

+-' ..-... 
ro T""" 

"O T""" 

o. o  
=>  N  

E �  
Q)  0  
U)  0  
� w  
(/)  <  

5.....  -  
2  c  

�  c[  

c  
ro  
-  
o,  

+-'  
c  
Q)  
E  
Q)  
0)  

ro  
c  
ro  

�  
+-'  
Q)  ..-...  
Cl)  """'  Cl)  T"""  

<(  0  

E N  
Q)  "O  

+-'  0  Cl)  0  

� �  
5.....  Q)  
Q)  "O  

+-'  c  

� 2  
.  

N  

I  
"O  
-  
·- 
::l 
co 

E 
Q) 

+-' Cl) �  
(/) 

5.....  
Q) 

+-' 
ro 
$ ..-... 
Q) """' +-' T"""  Cl) 0 

CO N  

s  Q)  
"O  �  
c  Q)  
ro  · 

o, 
5.....  I  Q) +-' 

+-' .c. 
ro 0) 

S ·c 

5..... s 
ro - 

� �  
I  "O  

�  ::l  
+-'  +-'  
c  (/)  
Q)  +-'  

� a  
.  

('I')  

Page 14 of 86



""""" 
""""" 0 
N 

c:: 
ca 

- 
0.. 
..... 

c:: 
a, 

E 
a, 

> 
0 

c 
E 
- 

Page 15 of 86



- 

E 

l() 

0 

- · C  "O  ·- 
0:: ro 
_ 2  
C  L  

u 2  ro  ro  
(9  s -  

(j)  "T'S.  ..-..  c  �  •  Q)  
�  §  ciJ  E  

�  .  "O  Q)  
"" Cf!  -  ro  <..lro 0 
£ c � n. :::, ·- ·- Q) 
c5l :lll &! 0:: 

. --c 

� a, 

N � 
0 0 
N N 

""-, 
r-: 

0 0 
0 0 0 
o_ o_ 
I'- 

0 

"SI" 

0 
N 

l() co 
m_ co_ 
� 

0 

y; 

(') � y; 
y; 

(/) 

0 
Q) 

- 
"O 

ai 
ro 

-it: 

L 

0) 

0. 

- c 
::J 

c 
L 

Q) 
Q) Q) 

E 
o s 0. � 0 
- Q) Q) ro 

> � 3 Q) 
- 

Q) 
0 Cf) 

"O Q) c 

s ro 
� L Q) Q) 

-"' c 
<..) c 
:J Q) 

I- ca � - 

"SI" (') N 

0 
0 
o_ 
(') 
a, 

Ltl_ 

� 

(') � 
0 
N 

0 
0 
o_ 
0 
a, 

o_ 
(') 
y; 

-"' c co Q) c Q) 0 

ro E � s 
I- Q) 

� s: 
- <..) (/) -"' ro 0 0 c _  

0::  ro  o.  -  
I-  Q)  0  

c  
t,  0  

Q)  0::  -  ro  
CJ)  c  Q)  

Q)  
2  

�  ·ro 3 
-� 

0 O 2 o 0.. 

- u5 ,._ I- c 
,._ .ru ID Q) 
a, ro - E 
ro s ro 0. 

s _.s 0 
Q) 

3 :J E > a, ro o Q) 
z >- ,!::: 0 

c 
0 

n 
:J 
L 

- (/) 

c 
0 
o 

0 

2 
ro 
0 

� 
- ro 
0. 

·c3 
:;::; 

c 
<( 

ro 
en 
0 
u c 
t5 . Q  
Q)  t,  
·o 2 
L -  o..  (/)  

"O  c  
Q)  0  

- u  ro  
E  

�  
w  

c::  
m  
- o,  

"C  
c::  
m  

Cl.)  
.... 

m  
"C  

:J  

E  
Cl.)  
.... 

"' 
"' .....  

Cl.)  
.... 

i 

"' c::  
-  0  
m  · ..., .... 
·- m 
m "C 

(J � 
E 
E 
0 
(J 
Cl.) 

� 

.... 
c:: 
Cl.) 

E 
Cl.) 
> 
0 
..... 

Page 16 of 86



l!) 

Q) Q) 
(/) 

Q) Q) (/) 

(/) - - - - 
Q) 

::, 
Q) Q) Q) Q) � 

- 
0. 0. 0. Q_ Ol 

(1) 
E E E E 

0 

- 
� 

(j) 0 0 0 0 0... 0 0 0 0 c: 

� � 
0 
N 

U) 
..... 

(.) 
C1) 

• 

0 - c: 
Q) 

s... E 

a. 
Q) 

o 

0 
(1) 

0. - 
a. 

c: 
Q) Q) 

- 
O'.'. E 

(..) -� 
Q) 

o 

- 
(1) (1) 

(.) 2 Q_ (/) 

- 
Q) � Q) 

Q) 

·- 
B Q) O'.'. 

"O � - 
(1) 

o 0... 
(1) 

c: 
� 

s 
Ol 

e 
(1) 0. 

Q) 00 (/) 2 ::::, 
::l s 

0 
- 

� � c: Q) Q) 

0 
s: Q) 

Q) 

- s E 
(1) 

(/) - s 0 
::::, Q) 

(..) - 
0 

> 
- 

(1) 
c O'.'. 0 Q) ;,:: 
(.) 

� Q) Q) 
(1) 

0 0. � 
e - E - 

(j) 

2 � (j) 
Q) "O 

== 
"O ;,:: - 

c: c 

Q) 0 :i -� (1) 

0. f- 
(1) 

2 :i:: 

� 
0 � > Q) 

Q) Q) -"" 
s: c 

> - c t::'. c 

Q) 
(1) 

(1) 0 Q) 

0 � f- z ca 

Page 17 of 86



Q) 
!.... +-' 
0 cu 0 E 

!.... • 

E 
...c +-' Q) CJ) 
$ Q) +-' ""C 

....... Q) CJ) +-' cu Q) � CJ) � .s: ""C CJ) C'-· >- $ Q) 
0 cu c CJ) 0) c 

cu !.... c 
N E !.... +-' Q) Q) c Q) 
e o J2  c  c  ...c  ...c  ·- !.... 

en :J 
co $ cu $ +-' 

+-' CJ) t::: ·- +-' 
- 0 CJ) >< :J 
a. 

CJ) +-' 0 ""C Q) Q) '+- ·- Q) 
...., c CJ) E 0. c 0 !.... 

c: cu CJ) Q) E cu ""C CJ) 0 
� '+- 

a, - cu +-' 
·- +-' $ 

c 

E a.. CJ) CJ) 
+-' CJ) $ c 

>- CJ) 0 0 o �  +-'  �  CJ)  a,  c  E  0  o  I  r  o.  
Q)  Q)  Q)  E  +-'  

I  Q)  +-'  
co  

E  en  
...c  ...c  O  

e  
+-'  Q)  

co  

0  
Q)  >-  CJ)  ...c  $  

+-'  c  

�  0)  CJ)  Q)  +-'  Q)  CJ)  
cu  !....  0  Q)  +-'  a,  0)  Q)  

cu  ....,  

....,  c  :J  ""C  !....  ...c  co  CU  O  
a,  cu  0  cu  I..  c  ""C  

"'  �  >-  
+-'  

s  
....,  

cu  c  cu  +-'  
en  

"'  
c  .  ...c  cu  E  cu  

<(  +-'  
0  6  s  

...c  Q)  
s  0  0.  

E  
CJ)  CJ) �  I  

e  ::::  Q)  c  ·- CJ) c cu "C C'-· 
a, < 0 !.... ·- 0 ...c ...., 

e 
CJ) 

...., 

Q) .CJ) � 
"' "' 

+-' O I-  

"'  
0  

.  

::::s  CJ)  
c  

....,  

0  
+-'  

...c  ·- 0 ...., a, LL 0 
.  

en 
+-' (.) 

e 0 

"' 
(..) o cu Q) 

'+- Q) Q) ·- 
!.... 

a, +-' 

"' 
E Q) CJ) :J 

I.. 0 ""C - 
> ""C <( 

a, ·- +-' 
a, - ""C ..c C'-· - 

I.. ...c c (.) 
...., 

cu Q) cu e c Q) o � +-' cu :J 

� 
·- 0 - O C co � (..) 

!.... - !.... 

0> E ·ro 
...., o 

o 0 a.. en a, '+- Q) !.... _.. CJ) ·- c a, Q) � 
"' 

...., 
c: >- ...c O CJ) +-' 

·- '+- :J 

"' 
·- I.. cu ..... 0 cu ...c '+- 

·- I- .S CJ) <( -� (..) E _J _J o, I- .S 

• • • • • • 

Page 18 of 86



...... 

c:: 
(lJ I.{) i 
E 

N I.{) 
.,.... I'-- (0 I.{) CX) (0 N 

.,.... 

"SI" co 
(0 

I'-- 
(") 0 

(") 
N 

(") 0 0) N (0 .,.... 
(") I'-- 

N CX) 
I.{) 

CX) 
0) .,.... a, 

(") (") (0 .,.... 
"SI" 0 (") CX) 

'& e 
0 0) CX) I'-- "SI" (0 0 CX) 

0 (") 
(") I.{) .,.... 

(0 .,.... 0 
(0 I.{) 

0 I.{) 
CX) 

"SI" 
0) "SI" 

0 
CX) 

0) 
0) (0 0 CX) "SI" 0) 

.,.... 0 0) I'-- 
N CX) 

I.{) CX) a, 

"SI" I.{) (0 N .,.... .,.... N I'-- 

i CtS 
Id')- 

Id')- 
Id')- Id')- 

.,.... Id')- Id')- Id')- 
Id')- Id')- 

Id')- Id')- 
Id')- 

Id')- 
Id')- Id')- 

Id')- 

- 

(lJ 

Q:: 

c:: 

·- CtS 

� ....... 

..... N 
(lJ 0 
...... N 

� 
I 

00 

"""" ...... 0 
e N 
(lJ 0 

- 

E 
0 -0 

Cl) 
s: ro 

Cl) 
0 

0 
-0 Cl) .... 

(lJ (/) ro 
:::, 

- iY -0 0 Cl) c (/) 

s: CJ) ro iY .0:: Cl) 
- c 

.Ql 0 .... � c 

CtS I .IE iY sa 0 
ro ro 

c:: 
0 

CJ) 
- .IE -� 

z- 
0... 2 

.... c -0 - 
.... 

- Cl) CJ) Cl) .... s: 

CtS 
-0 .><: 

ro .... 
c c Cl) Cl) Cl) 

- .... 
Cl) 0 w <.9 - 

:::, 

ro 0 <.9 
.... ro 

.><: - s 
0 

� 0 ro 0 0 (/) (/) 

iY 0... 0 
0 

0 - 
0 

ro � - - 
Cl) 0 0 

sa 0 > 0... .8 
Cl) 

0 - 
...... 

0 > 
Cl) 

- - 
- 

0 0 
ro 0 0 ·c Cl) - - (lJ -0 0 - 

CJ) Cl) Cl) 

- 
- 

s: - 
Cl) 0 .... 

CJ) 
ro 

Cl) 
- 

Cl) Cl) 

"' 
CJ) 0 - 

Cl) Cl) .... (/) .... .... 0 
.... 0 (/) ro :::, .... 

ro 0... - - Cl) iY Cl) - .c (/) (/) (.) 

"' 
.><: 

s: 
.... 

c (/) c 
.8 - 0 <.9 

Cl) :::, E E - 
<C 

ro ro Ol � -� 
0 

0 
c 

0 
.... a, 

0... iY I 0 ro Cl) (/) w w 

- CJ) 2 0 - 
E 

.... Cl) 

2 0 x 
a, 

- - - 
.c w - - -0 -0 

0 

Cl) Cl) Cl) a:, 
0 

- - 
a:, a:, 

ro ro 
ca 

a:, a:, a:, x a:, a:, a:, a:, 
0 0 c. 

.... .... .... w z - 
.... .... 

- - - 
a:, a:, a:, 

- - iY iY a, 
(/) (/) (/) .... .... � a:, (/) (/) 

- - 
:::, 

a:, 

- 
a:, � 

(/) (/) - 
.... CJ) .!!}, 

c c c c c 
- 

c a:, c c 
-0 - (/) ro 

a, 

ro ro ro ro 
a:, c c :::, a:, 'cii a:, 

ro ro .IE c. .... 

- 2 2 2 0 
Cl) 0 0 0 � - 2 - 2 

_J CJ) CJ) 
.... 

- - 0 - (/) a. 
iY - .c s: 0 L.. 

.... L.. 

s: s: s: (/) 
z- 

0 s: s: a:, Cl) a:, 

- - - :l: 
.Ql Ol CJ) (/) 

- 
t 

- .sc .><: .><: 
ca 

:::, :::, :::, 
E Cl) a:, CJ) L.. a:, :::, 0 :::, 

u: 0 0 

- 0 0 0 a:, .... L.. 0 a:, 
.... 0 .c 0 � ro ro {:. 

(/) (/) (/) z w 0 0 0 <.9 0... (/) (/) (/) 0... 0... Page 19 of 86



.... 

c:: 
Q> Ll) 

E 
(0 I'- N I'- l{) N st N I'- 

N (") 0 ... 

l{) 0 N I'- (") N 0 00 l{) 
(J) 0 (0 st_ 

Q> 
00 st (0 00 00 ... (0 l{) 

0 
00 (") l{) 

M 

0 (0 (J) N I'- st (J) 0 a," (0 I'- st M 

0 
00 N (") ... (J) (") I'- 00 (0 00 ... st Ll) 

(0 N st N st N (") ... 
w 

st (") l{) 
.f" 

cu 
w w w w w w w w w w w 

<F> 

- 

Q> 

0::: 

c 

·- cu 
:iE ....... 

I.. M 

Q> 0 

0 
.... N 
cu I 

3: 
co 
N 

.... 0 

c:: N 
Q> 

E 
Q> 

� 
(1) 

cu 
> 

·c 

c:: 
0 

cu 
.:.:. (0 
(l] 

2 M 
(1) 

:iE 
L c 0 

.Q (l] N 

>, I- • 
(l] 0 

.... 
� 0 0 M 

""O - 
0 

Q> � (l] Q) Q) N 

� 
- 

0 � c c 

"' 
- 

Q) 
a: 

..... 

Q) ""O :.:J :.:J (1) 
re 

VI 

"' 
Q) L 

E 
0 

L 

- 
0 0 0 

- 
(/) (l] a: - - 

o 

<( 
U) 

0 
s: 

- 
0. (1) ..... 

0 
c c E > c 

0 
0 

:.i2 ·a (l] 
·;:: G) 

s: 0 E s: 0 0 n, ,;: 
0 (/) 0 U) >, G) 

U) 
(l] 

a: E ;;::: 0 

(l] 
(l] s: (1) (l] 

c ""O 
s: 

(/) L 

0. c 
.,_ 

0 � u::: - :t::, 
� L (1) 

- 
::, 

- - - 
� G) 

(1) - 
� 

0 
Q) (1) (1) (1) 

� 
""O (1) 

0. (1) (1) (1) 
- 

""O ""O L 

ro 
(1) (1) � (1) (l] (l] - L E 

L L L U) Q) 

0 
- 

L 
""O - - - 

(1) 0 0 

- 
(/) (/) (/) c. 

a: U) (/) (l] (l] L a: a: >, 

,;: - (1) a. 
L 

0 OJ 
0 (l] (1) s: (/) L L L 

(1) U) a: L 0 (1) (1) 0. 

- 
0 c 

- 
0. L .:.:. 

- - 
Cll 

(1) s: ·;:: s: >, c (l] ::, 0 (1) (1) E ..... 
x 0 0. (/) (l] (1) s: s: 0 x x (l] 0 

w (/) (/) <( ca o o o a: w w _J I- Page 20 of 86



r- 
"I""'" 

0 
N 

� 
::::s 
...... 

en 
...... 
::::s 

0 
I 

"C 
- 
·- 
::::s 

m 
s... 
Q) 
...... 
ca 

;: 
Q) 
...... 

"' 3: 
"C 
e 
ca 

s... 
Q) 
...... 

� s... 
ca 

� 
> ...... 
c: 
Q) 

� 

0 

c O $ _. 
0 >, 
r � !,,... 
Q) o Q) 
...c o.ro ro u:i 
_. :> !,,... 
s.... CU > CU  
Q)  o  "'O  Q)  
£ c c >,  
ID  ID  ro o  
...c  E  !,,...  N  
5 _.  Q) _.  
(l) ro 5 X  (/)  Q)  Q)  Q)  
Q)  .;:.  (/)  c  
(/)  !,,...  Q)  Q)  
(/)  Q)  ...c  ...c  ro  _.  _.  _.  

ro  c  s....  
.8  5  E S  
(/) 2 � �  
�  �  $  c  

--  $  ...c  ::J  

i -g ] �  
1n ro s.... o  

!,,...  0)  o  

-� Q) "'O Q) 
£ ro 2 ...c  
'+-  $  (.)  _.  
O  Q)  .OQ?.. 0 Q) _. (/) ro s.... ro 
0 ::J 0. Q) 
0. O'" Q) !,,... s.... ID ...c ro 
::J "'O _. Q) 
o, ro ID -� 
Q) (/) 2:: 2:: 
...c ro ID ID 
I- ...c (/) (/) 

• 
Page 21 of 86



s 
c: 

·- 'O 
c: 

·- LL. 
> 

'O 
::, 
..... 

"' ..... 

::, 

0 
I 

'O 
- 
·- 

....... 

:::::l 
0 

I 

""O 
- 
·- 

:::::l 
.o 

L- eu Cl) 
� 

I 

0 
N 
Cl) 
...c 
....... 

....... Cl) 
Cl) 

s.... E 
Cl) 0 3: ....... 
Cl) c 

Cl) · 
o cu 
o, 
cu 
o 

...c 
0) 

:::::l 
0 
c Cl) 
en cu ...c . 
I- �  Cl)  ("')  
3:  0  Cl)  N  

Cl)  .8  
•  •  •  •  •  

•  ""O  en  
c  Cl)  cu  o  
....... .......  

c  o  
�  Cl)  cu  ..,......  I-  L-  eu  s....  o,  
en  :::::i  .......  

o  en  
""O  .....  Cl)  Cl)  
@  Cl)  .o  

""O  E  C'  
Cl)  o cn  c  

·- ....... :::::l � ""O Cl) 
© E e  E o  

'+-  Cl)  ·- ....... 0 cu ....... ...c CU o 
en en .....  Cl)  �  

�  ·- I- 0 
s.... s: en 3: I- o 
2 o s.... ....... ""O co 
CU _c (l) C  C  �  

s  ""O  1u  2  cu  �  
c  3:  .en c c en cu Cl) en Cl) Cl) s.... 
c.. ...c c  E  cu  
x  .......  o  .......  E   Cl)  '+-  o  cu  o,  0  
o  o  en  Cl)  o  ""O  

.......  �  ""O  I-  Cl)  co  
en  .......  c l-  > �  

""O  .  (.)  CU  =  Cl)  0  
© CU E  © o N  
Cl)  o,  Cl)  s  c  
c  cu  ""O  =  ·- (.) ...c Cl) ....... 
c O> ""O en S en 
3: c 2 .8  s....  

0  
�  ·- o c Cl) u C.. Cl) - � -  
�  §  ·e � � i9 
I- a a z I- �  

Page 22 of 86



(0 

LO 
0 
'Sf" 
N 

0 
0 
LO 

00 
(') 

t--- 

0 
N 
<F> 

� 
-" 
c 

cu 
l 

o 
- 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
t--- 

Q) 
c 

cu 
_J 

>, 
Q) � 
Q) 
I � 
"O cu 
0 
Cl'. 

t-- co 
0 
N 

0 
00 
a, 

N 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
00 
<F> 

t-- 
(') 

0 
N 

0 
0 
0 

g 
a, 

0) 

c 

"O 
c 

cu 
_J 

c 

cu 
2 

"O 
c 

cu 

.l!l 
c 

Q) L 

E Q) 
Q) - O Q) 
cu � 
ci � 
Q) Q) 
Cl'. c cu 

_J 

cu 
- :.:::; 
0 

- 

0 
0 
0 
0 
N 
00 

s: 

- :, 

0 
Cf) 

0 
0 
0 

N 
«: 

0 
N 

0 
0 
0 
N 
a, 
'Sf" 
<F> 

Q) 
c 

cu 
_J 

- c 
:, 
0 

2 

...., 

c 

cu 
(/) 

cu 
Q) 

0... 

L 
Q) 

-" 
(/) 

cu 
1- 

"0 
c 

cu 

s: 

- :, 
0 

Cf) 

...; 

Cf) 

Q) 
0.. 
cu 
2 
"O 
c 

cu 

0 
0 
0 
0 
LO 
(0 

<F> 

L 

Q) 

- cu 
s 

c 

c cu 
Q) 2 
E L 

Q) Q) 

0 - cu cu 
0.. s 
Q) 

Cl'. 

c 

·ro 

2 

Q) � 
- Cf) 

E 

w 

- c 
Q) 

E 
Q) 
0 cu 
0.. 
Q) 

Cl'. 

c 

cu 
2 

L 

2 cu 
s 

'Sf" 0 
� 0 
a, 0 

N N 

N 
(') 

0 
N 

0 
0 
LO 

N 
(') 

'Sf" 

t--- 00 a, 

L 
Q) 
-" 
0 
:, 

I 

Q) 
s: 

- t5 
:, 
L 

- U) 

c 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
'Sf" 

(') 

<F> 

-" 
c 

cu 
I 
Q) 
0) � 
.8 
Cf) 

L 

2 cu 
s 

� 
z 

t-- 
N 
0 
N 

0 
0 
0 
'Sf" 
(0 � 
N 
<F> 

L 
Q) 

ro 
s 
"O cu 
0 
Cl'. 
>, 

cu 
m 

- c 
Q) 

E 
Q) 
0 cu 
0.. 
Q) 
Cl'. 

c 

cu 
2 

'Sf" LO <D 

L 

� 
s 
"O cu 
0 
Cl'. 

� 
z 

- c 
Q) 

E � cu 
0.. 
Q) 
Cl'. 

c 

cu 
2 

a, � 
0 
N 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
o o" 
'Sf" 0 
(0 t--- 
<F> <F> 

� 

"O cu 
0 
Cl'. 

- c � 
o 
0 

- ...; 

Cf) 

"O cu 
2 

cu 
Cl'. � 
c 

cu 
2 
.c; 

- :, 
0 

Cf) 

- c 
Q) 

E � cu 
0.. 
Q) 
Cl'. 

c 

cu 
2 

N 

- c 
Q) 

E 

- cu � 
I- 
L 

2 cu 
s 

O LO � 
LO 00 0 
N <D a, 

C0 N � 

a, � 
0 
N 

L 
Q) 

-" 
0 
:, 

1- 

"0 
c 

cu 
s: 
(/) 

0 

- c 0 
cu 
2 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 
O a, 
a, 0 
(') � 
<F> <F> 

0 

E 

....... 

e 
Q) 

E 
Q) 

> 
0 
s... 

- 

e 
ca 
- 
a. 

Q) 

c 
s... 

Q) 
....... 

3: 
'C 
Q) 

'C 
e 
Q) 

E 
E 
0 
0 
Q) 

0::: 

- 

ca 

o 
s... 

ca 

� 
I 

0 
N 

ca 
....... 

·- 

Page 23 of 86



0 
0 
0 

0 
(") 
cr, 

<O 
.,,. 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
r- 
Yl- 

v-' 

0 
cr, 

....... = 

- - c 
Q) c 

E 
Q) 

Q) E 
o 

Q) 

(1l o 

Q. 
(1l 

Q) 0. 

a:: 
Q) 

a:: 
c c 
(1l 

(1l 

2 2 
.... 

Q) .... 

- 
Q) 

(1l 
- s 
(1l 

s 
cJ 

cJ (1l 

0 
(1l 

a:: 0 

a:: Cl) 

3: >, ro 
- Q) (1l 0 

z 00 I- 

-tj" If) 

cr, N 
� N 
0 0 
N N 

If) 

co 

<O 

N 

0 

0 
0 

0 
-tj" 
<O 
.,,. 

0 
If) 

N 

(") 

0 
0 
0 

0 
cr, 

0 

� 
.,,. 

::.:: 

cr, 
� 
0 
N 

c 
(1l 

2 
.... 

Ql 

- (1l 

s 
� 
cJ 
(1l 

0 

a:: 

- c 
ro 
.... 

o 
0 

- +-' 
Cl) 

cJ 
(1l 

0 
.... 

(1l 

a:: - � c  

c  Q)  

·ro E 
2 Q) 

o 
s: (1l 

- -  :::,  Q.  
O  Q)  

([)�Ct:'. 

(") 

.. 

0 

§ 
0 
0 

0 

u, § 0 
cr, 

... 
(") 
.,,. 

o 
Cl) 

• 

0 
I.. 

a, cr, 

... � 

CL 
0 0 

N N 

..... 

0 

0 -c 
c 
::::, 

0 Cl) 

0::: 
Q) 

s 
.... 

Q) 

-" 

... o 

� 
:::, 

u, I- 

"O cJ 

I.. e! c 

� 
(1l 

·- 
s: 

LL 
:::> Cl)  

Ql  

0  

- c 

s (.)  
(1l  

2 

- c 
Q)  

E 

- (1l  
Q)  
.... 

I- 
.... 

Q)  

- (1l  

s 

N  

Page 24 of 86



• • • 

(/) 
Q) 
(/) 

co Q) 
!..... 
o 
c 

• • 

• Q) +-' 
o Q) 

·- (/) 
c: (/) 

Q) Q) co 
s: (/) Q) 
+-' +-' ..c . +-' .0 +-' (/) 
© a,  t en  

E
a, "O o .S 

"O o, "O 
.8 � §- §  �  
..c  (/)  (/)  �  co  
0)  c  +-'  "O  (/)  ::::l  O  ::::l  (/)  
0  .Q c +-' Q) 
c +-' (/) (/) (.) 
Q) � Q) +-' Q) 

Q) 0 ::::l c 
(/) 0 ·- C.. "O I  Q) 
Q) a Q) ::Q ro +-' +-' +-' •  - 
co c co ::::l 
!.....  Q) !.....  .0 
!.....  !.....  •  Q) !.....  -  "O 

+-' ::::J 2 c 
co o co co 
$ (/) $ +-' 

+-' :......, +-' c 
c c c Q) ·m 
a, a, a, E +-' 
"'- E "'- "'- !..... Q) co 
::::l t ::::l 0) !..... 
o co o co !..... 
Q) C..  a, C  2  
s:  a,  ..c  Ero � 
1- 0 1-  >  

(/)  Q)  
E  
::::l  
(/)  

c  
0  
o  
Q)  
E  
0  
..c  
�  s.....=  

E  co  
co  Q)  '-I-  �  
Q)  !.....  -  Q)  
0)  o,  
c  !.....  

·- Q) (/) +-' 
Q) co 
0) $ 
co '-I- 
© 0 
> (/) 
co c 
Q) _Q 
..c ro 
I- 0) 

0 
0 
N 

- c.o 
("') 

"t- 

o 

!..... ..-... Q) c 
o, 0 

I.() - 
� co 

.  0) 
� !..... 
(;fl- Q) 
(/) o, 

·- Q) � +-' c co Q) 
Ct'. o 
"'- en Q) I.() 

+-' 0 

� �  
0  +-'  ..._..  

c  Q)  s.....=  
!.....  Q)  
!.....  +-'  
::::l  co  
0  $  

+-'  Q)  
�  
o  

·- 
.0 
::::l 
o 

0 
0 � 

0 ..... 

Q) 
.... 

� 

Page 25 of 86



f'-.. 
N 
0 

N 

0 
l{) 

0 
"'3- 

(D 

N 
0 
N 

l{) 
(J) 

CX) 

"'3- 

0 
l{) 

0 
"'3- 

== 

= 

l{)  

N  
0  

N  

0  0  0  
0  0  0  
0  0  0  

0  0  0  

""'" 
N  0  

(D  f'-..  CX)  

"'3-  "'3-  "'3-  

0  
l{)  

0  
"'3-  

0  
0  
0  

0  
(D  
l{)  

"'3-  

0  
l{)  

0  
"'3-  

l{)  
(J)  

r-,  
"'3-  

""'" N  
0  
N  

C')  

N  
0  
N  

0  
l{)  

0  
"'3-  

0  
0  

0  

0  
CX)  

""'" "'3-  

-- 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

""'" "'3- 

0 
l{) 

0 
"'3- 

l{) 
(J) 

(D 

"'3- 

N 
N 
0 
N 

.,.... 

N 
0 
N 

0 
N 
0 
N 

(J) 
.,.... 

0 

N 

CX) 
.,.... 

0 
N 

0 
0 0 0 

0 
0 0 0 

0 
0 0 0 

0 
0 0 0 

CX) 
(D 

""'" 
N 

"'3- 
.,.... N C') 

"'3- "'3- "'3- 

"' a, 

"' co 
a, 
I.. 0 0 0 0 

(J l{) l{) l{) l{) 

e 
0 0 0 0 

"'3- "'3- "'3- "'3- 

- 
a, 
.., 

co 

a::: 

0 "'C 
a, 

"'C 
e 
a, 

l{) 

E 
l{) l{) l{) 
(J) ""': (J) ""': 

""'" 
l{) l{) (D 

E 
"'3- "'3- "'3- "'3- 

0 
(J 
a, 

a::: 

Page 26 of 86



� � � � � � ';fl. � � � ';fl. � ';fl. ';fl. 0 � 
0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

I'- '<!" '<!" so co 0 co so '<!" co l{) co co 
0 

...... 
� 0 

co (") � � N l{) 0 I'- (") N I'- l{) (") 
l{) 

0 0 
0 oi l[) N 
0 

0) 0) co l{) � co 0 � co N .,.... 
T'"" .,.... 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) co co I'- l{) '<!" N � 
0 
N 

I,,. 

0 
(/) � � � � ';fl. � � � � � ';fl. � � � � 
"" 

0 0 0 0 

c 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 � co 0) co (") 0 

\lo- 
(") (") 0 0) 0 l{) (") � N l{) 

::J � l{) C'! 0) 0) I'- '<!: (") '<!" 
� '<!: � � (") 

0 

en � 0 0 0 0 N ro (") I'- 0) C0 l{) I'- C0 � � 
0 

� � � -e--: � 
..., 

en 
0 

o (/) 
(") 0) l{) 0 N 

co 

"" 
l{) '<!" I'- N 

� � 
co .,.... 

1J 
c N co (") � '<!" l{) l{) 

� '<!" 0) (") co 0 I'- � l{) 

::J 
� � � N N N � .,.... 

c: 

«s 

c: 
l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) 0 l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) 

0 l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) 0 0 l{) 0 l{) 0 l{) 0 

·- 
..... l{) c.o I'- co 0) l{) c.o 

.,.... I'- N co (") oi'  
..., ro co 0)  0  .,.... N  'St"  0)  l{)  0  c.o .,.... I'-  N  

t co I'-  I'-  c.o l{)  'St"  (")  (")  (")  N  N  .,....  .,.... 
ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  

E 
.....  

Q)  

0.  

:J Cl)  
.....  

en 

0 
ro 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

0  
0  0  0  0  0  l{)  0  l{)  0  l{)  0  l{)  l{)  0  

c: 0  -e--'  N  (")  'St"  l{)  0  co .,.... I'-  N  ro (")  'St"  0  

0 
0  .,.... N  (")  "SI'.  0  l{)  .,.... 

c.o N  r-- (")  'St"  0  

co  I'-  c.o l{)  'St"  'St"  (")  (")  N  N  
.,.... .,....  ifT  ifT  

o 
ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  ifT  

I,,.  

�  
Q) 

N  N  N  ..., 
0)  (")  r-- 

N  0  N  N  N  N  N  N  N  N  Q)  

3: 
.....  ro 0)  0)  

.,.... 0  I'-  0)  .,.... (")  l{)  r-,  0)  .,.... 

E 
ro 

0  co l{)  0  c.o 
.,.... c.o .,....  c.o N  0  0  

co (")  co (")  ..,,[  
t 'St"  (")  0  

0)  'St"  so  0)  .,.... c.o 0)  .,.... 'St"  .c  
.,....  

ro I'-  c.o l{)  l{)  'St"  (")  N  N  
.,.... -... 

.,....  .,.... .,....  .,.... Cl)  
.....  c  

Q) 
Q)  0  

0..  

E 
Cl)  

ro 

c  
Ol  

0 
0  0  0  0  

0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  �1 ro 
'St" ro N 

c.o 0 N 'St" c.o ro 0 N 'St" c.o ro 
c.o c.o I'- 

:::c (9 I'- ro (") ro (") ro 'St" 0) 'St" 0) 'St" 0 
'St" 0) '<!" 0) I'- 0) 'St" r-- N 'St" r-- 

j (") .,.... 0 
'St" N 0) 

.,.... .,.... .,.... ro r-- c.o l{) l{) 'St" (") N N .,.... 

- 
·- 
E ..... E 

ro :::J 

«s t 
Cl) 

0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0) m m m m 0) m m 
c 

u. ..... m r-- l{) (") .,.... 0 
ro I'- c.o l{) 'St" (") N .,.... 0 0 

Q) 
.,.... .,.... .,.... .,.... .,.... .,.... 0 

Q) 
0.. ..... 

..... 
Q) 

- 
Q) 

..... 

ro 
Q) 

s LL 

c: u Q) 

·- 
..0 

Ol 

en 
:::J 0 0 0 0 0 

ro 

0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

..... 

ro c.o 'St" N 0 
m ro r-- c.o l{) '<:!'. (") N 

.,.... 0 Q) 

0 
.,.... .,.... .,.... .,.... .,.... � 

0 .,.... 
Page 27 of 86



E 
ro (/) 

(") 0) L() 0 N 
co 

tn 
u, :!= L() 'SI" I'- N 

...... ...... 
(0 ...... 

c: N co (") ...... � L() L() 
...... 'SI" 0) (") (0 0 I'- 

...... l{) 
..., :J 

...... ...... ...... N N N ...... 

...... 

(.) 

co � 
E 

.... 
ro 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 

-fl!. 
l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) 0 l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) l{) 

l{) 0 

- .... 
0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 'SI" 0) '<!" 0) '<!" 0) 'Sjc 

0) 0 
Q) 0) co r-- (0 l{) l{) '<!" (") (") N N ...... ...... 

fFl- fFl- 

Cl) a. fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- y,,. y,,. fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- 

tn 
Cl) 
.... 

co 
ro 

0 

Cl) 

0 
0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 � 0 0 
s... ...... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 l{) 

�I (.) 
o 

0 0 ci 0 0 l{) 0 l{) 0 l{) 0 l{) 0 
ro 0 
a. 

0) co r-- co l{) 'SI" 'SI" (") (") N N ...... ...... 

fFl- fFl- 

e E 
fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- fFl- 

- 
Cl) 
..., 

N N N N N 0 N N N N N N N N 

co 
l{) 0) (") r-- 

Q) 

.... co co 0) 0) 
...... 0 r-- 0) ...... (") l{) r-, 

?61 
...... 

E � ro 

� 
0 co l{) 0 co ...... co ...... N 0 0 

c -fl!. 
co (") (") 

0) 'SI" co 0) ...... 'SI" co 0) ...... '<!" s: 

0 
'<!" (") 0 co r-, co l{) l{) 'SI" (") N N ...... 

--- ...... ...... ...... Cl) 

s... :.::; .... c 

Cl) 
Cl Q) 

0 

E 0.. 

..., ::J Cl) Cll 

� 
Cl) c 

Ol 

c 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 � 0 'Sjc co N 
co 0 N 'Sjc co co 0 N '<!" co co 

0 Cll co (!) r-- 

CJ ...f 
r-- co (") co (") co 'SI" 0) '<!"_ 0) '<!" 0 

=r 0) 0) 'SI" r-, 0) N 'SI" r-- 0) N 'SI" r-- so 
(") ...... 0 

co r-- co l{) l{) '<!" «: N N ...... 
(") 

...... ...... ...... 
c 

0 � 
.... E 
Cll ::J 

-fl!. 
Cl) 

0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) c 

.... 
0) r-- l{) (") ...... 0 co r-, co l{) 'SI" (") N ...... 

0 0 

Q) ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 0 
0.. .... 

...... 
Q) 

Q) 
...... 

Q) 
Cll 

LL s 
o Q) 

:.0 Ol 

::J 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 

� 
0 co co 'SI" N 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
...... 0 Q) 

...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 
0) co r-- co l{) 'Sjc (") N 

> 
0 <( 
0 
...... 

;f! ;f! cf. ;f! ;f! ;f! cf. ;f! ;f! ;f! cf. ;f! ;f! ;f! 0 ;f! 
0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

I'- 'SI" 'SI" (0 (0 0 co (0 'SI" (") L() (0 co 
0 

;f! 0 L() 

0 
co (") ...... ...... N L() 0 I'- (") N I'- L() (") 

0 
0 0) o:i 0) co L() ...... co 0 ...... co N L() N 
0 ...... 

...... 
0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) co co I'- L() 'SI" N ...... 

(/) 
;f! ;f! cf. ;f! ;f! ;f! ;f! ;f! ;f! ;f! cf. ;f! ;f! ;f! ;f! :!= 0 0 0 0 

c 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ...... co 0) co (") 0 

(") (") 0 0) 0 L() (") ...... N L() 

:J ...... L() N 0) 0) I'- 'SI" (") 'SJ: 
...... s:r: ...... ...... (") 

0 

;f! 0 0 0 0 N cry (") I'- 0) 
(") L() I'- (") ...... 

...... 

0 
...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 

Page 28 of 86



CJ) 

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
"" 

0 0 0 0 0 

c 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

...... 00 0) 00 (") 0 

(") (") 0 0) 0 I.{) (") � N LO 
:::) ...... LO N 0) 0) ..... -st: (") -st: 

...... 

"" 
...... ...... (") 

0 

� 0 0 0 0 N (") (") ..... 0) 
(") LO ..... (') ...... � 

0 
� ...... � ...... ...... 

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

..... 

"" "" 
<O <O 0 00 <O 

"" 
(") LO <O 00 

0 � 0 
00 (") � ...... N LO 0 f--, (") N ..... L{) (") LO 

0 0 
0 0) 0) 0) 00 LO ...... 00 0 � 00 N I!) N 
0 � 
...... 

0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 00 00 ..... LO 

"" 
N ...... 

CJ) � (") 0) LO � 0 N 
CX) 

en ·""' LO 

"" 
r-, N <O ...... 

c N 00 (") 
...... 

"" 
LO LO 

� 
"" 

0) (") <O 0 ..... 
...... I.() 

....., :::) 
-e--' ...... � N N N ...... 

...... 

CJ 
ca 

E 
I.() I.() I.() I.() I.() 0 I.() I.() I.() I.() I.() I.() I.() 

I.() 
0 0 0 0 0 0 I.() 0 I.() 0 I.() 0 I.() 

0 
0 

.... I.() (0 ..... CX) Ol I.() 0 ...... ...... N N (') (') 0 

- 
(ll CX) CX) CX) CX) CX) Ol 

"" 
Ol 

""' 
Ol 

""' 
Ol 

""' 
'Sj' 

0 

� Ol CX) I'- (0 I.() 

""' 
'Sj' (') (') N N ...... ...... 

Ol 
fh 

a, fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh 
fh 

.... 

en 
Q) 
0. 

ca U) 
.... 

a, 

0 
(ll 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 

"- 0 
0 0 0 0 0 I.() 0 I.() 0 I.() 0 I.() 

0 
I.() 

0 ...... N (') 

""' 
I.() I.() (0 (0 I'- r-, CX) CX) Ol 

CJ 
Ol 

Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol =r Ol 'Sj' Ol 'Sj' Ol 

""' Ol ""' 
c 

CX) I'- (0 I.() 

""' ""' 
(') (') N N ...... ...... 

fh 
fh 

fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh fh 

- 
a, 
....., 

N N N N N 0 N N N N N N N N 

ca 
I.() Ol (') I'- 

Q) 

.... CX) CX) Ol Ol 
...... 0 I'- Ol ...... (') I.() I'- Ol ...... E 

� (ll 0 CX) I.() 0 (0 ...... (0 ...... (0 N 0 0 

� 
CX) (') CX) co 

Ol 

""' 
(0 Ol ...... 'Sj' (0 Ol ...... 

""' 
.c 

""' 
(') ...... 0 CX) I'- (0 I.() I.() 

""' 
(') N N ...... 

...._ 

...... ...... ...... ...... U) 

"- 
.... c 

a, 
Q) 0 
o, 

....., U) 
(ll 

ca 
c 

Ol 

0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 �I 

� 
(ll ""' 

CX) N (0 0 N 'Sj' (0 CX) 0 N 
""' 

(0 CX) 
(0 (0 I'- 

(9 I'- CX) (') CX) (') CX) 

""' 
Ol 

""'- 
Ol 'Sj' 0 

""' 
Ol 

""' Ol 

""' 
I'- Ol N "Ste I'- Ol N "Ste I'- 

1 
(') ...... 0 CX) I'- (0 I.() I.() "Ste (') N N ...... 

...... ...... ...... 

.... 
E 

(ll :::J 

� U) 

Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol 0 
Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol 

c 

.... Ol I'- I.() (') ...... 0 CX) I'- (0 I.() 

""' 
(') N ...... 

0 0 

Q) ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... -e--' 0 
n, .... 

- 
Q) 

Q) - 

Q) 
(ll 

u, s 
o Q) 

..0 
Ol 

:::J 0 0 0 0 0 
(ll 

0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

.... 

CX) (0 'Sj' N 0 
Ol CX) I'- (0 I.() "Ste (') N 

...... 0 Q) 

0 
...... ...... ...... ...... ...... � 

0 
...... 

Page 29 of 86



Q) 
(fJ 

co 
Q) 0 � (!) 
o 
c 

.,.- 

(!) 

0 N 

L() fFJ- 

0 
fFJ- 

c:: ..... 

0 
(1l 

fl) � 
·- 

..... 

s... 
(!) 
o, - 

co 
(fJ 

Cf) 0 N 0 co 0 0 

c o 
0) "<!: """ 

L() (!) 

0 >, =r 0 L() r-- r-- 

E 
;:: co 0) L() 

""" 
C') 

(1l co 

""" 
N N N N 

('.) � fFJ- fFJ- fFJ- fFJ- fFJ- 

0 0 

o 0 

N 

..... co 

fl) 
(') 

Cf) 

0 (!) 

o 
E (fJ 

::i c 

Cf) 0 

s... c co """ """ """ """ """ 0 0 0 0 0 

Cl) 0 o 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 

..... 
o � L() L() L() L() L() 

..... 
Q) C') C') C') C') C') 

co (!) - co 

� 
Cf) 

s ::::, 
..... 

c:: 
(!) 

- (1l 

3 s 
- 

(!) 
Q) 

� 
Q) 

CJ) u, 
(1l 

o 
..... 

(!) .0 

� :::J 

o co co co co co 

..... 
- 

0 """ 
=r 

""" """ """ 
·- 

(!) 0 

o 
� .,.- 

..... � 
(1l Q) 

co E - co 

Cl) 3 s 
(!) 

s... z 

<( 

c 

:§: 

� 
>, s: 
:!::: 

- o :::J 

E 
0 � E 

Q) co � 
- 

s: 
Q) (fJ 

Q) � > t 
x :::J 0 0 

w 0 0 0.. Page 30 of 86



u, 

e 

0 
·- ..... 

u, 
Cl) 
::::, 

a 

Page 31 of 86



·- 

en 
s..... 

Page 32 of 86



.c 
..., 

..., (!) 
c :::, :,,::. 

3! 0 
..... 

E 
� E 

co 
..... 

E (!) co ..... 

<--; 
Cf) 

3! 
..., s: 

(!) 

>, t (!) ..... > 
..., 

0 (!) x :::, 0 

u 0. z w 0 0 

c: 

0 
L.. 

Cll 

ti) � 
·- 

L.. 

s... Q) 

co 0... 
..., 

Cf) 

0 0 0 I"- (0 N 
en 

0 
(") 0 L!) .,.... 0) 

c 

E 
0 >, 

.,.... I"- L!) N I"- 

.::: (") 0 

"'" 
.,.... 0 

ro co 
(0 L!) 

"'" 
'SI" 'SI" 

� 
� � � � � 

0 
(9 

o 
co 

0 

""'" ....., 

""'" ti) C') 

0 
en 
Q) 

o E Cf) 

::::J c 

s... 
en 0 

0 
c 

co 
co co co co co 

Q) 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

o 
C) 'SI" 'SI" 'SI"_ 'SI"_ 'SI" 

== 
..... 'SI" 

"'" "'" 
'SI" 'SI" 

L.. (!) (") (") (") (") (") 
Q) 3! 

Q) en (!) 

en 
:::) (/) 

L.. 

Q) 

c: ::§: 

== 
Q) 

U) 

� 
Q) 

OJ 
Cll Cf) 
L.. :!= 
Q) c 

� 
:::) 

(0 (0 (0 (0 (0 
....., ..... 

+-' (!) 'SI" 'SI" 'SI" 
"'" 

'SI" 

·- 
Q) 3! 

o � (!) 
L.. 

(/) 
Cll 

co E 

Q) ::§: 
Q) 

s... z 

<( 

Page 33 of 86



Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: June6, 2018 

TITLE: Resolution #2017/2018-47 - to Increase the Water Rate 50 Cents 

PREPARED BY: Sean Greig, Director of Environmental Services 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend passage of this resolution 

BACKGROUND: 
Resolution to Increase the Water Rate 50 Cents 

DISCUSSION: 
Resolution to Increase the Water Rate 50 Cents 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The 20-Year Water Department Capital Improvement Plan will increase water rates 50 cents a year for 10 
years. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend the Town Council pass the resolution to increase the water rate 50 cents. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description 

Resolution - Water Rate Increase 2018 

Upload Date 

51712018 

Type 

Cover Memo 

Page 34 of 86



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution #2017-2018-47 
Increase of Water Rates 

WHEREAS, water rates shall be determined by the Town Council from time to time in 
amounts that will adequately cover the costs of operation, maintenance, and repair of existing 
infrastructure, and also for reasonable extensions to existing mains, and toward acquisition of 
future water supply, plant and equipment; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Newmarket has implemented a Capital Improvement Plan and 
needs to raise additional income to cover the Capital Improvement Plans costs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED, the Town Council does hereby 
approve the following water rates to be effective for the August 1, 2018 quarterly billing: 

Water users will be billed $4.95 per 100 cubic feet of water consumed. The water and 
sewer system charge will remain with no increase, but will be billed quarterly $6.00 per 
unit for water and sewer. 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

May 16, 2018 

June 6, 2018 

Approved: _ 
Dale Pike, Chairman Newmarket Town Council 

A True Copy Attest: _ 

Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 35 of 86



Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 

TITLE: 

June6, 2018 

Resolution #2017/2018-48 Purchase of3 Motorola Radios (Police, Fire and Backup) 
with 6x8 structure 

PREPARED BY: Kyle True, Police Chief 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend passage of this resolution 

BACKGROUND: 
The Newmarket Dispatch Center provides Police, Fire and EMS services for Newmarket and Newfields. In 
2006 we purchased our Police primary radio and in 2008 we purchased our Fire primary radio. Both radios are 
located on Great Hill near the Town's water tank. Both radios will become unsupported in 2019, meaning that 
if they break, replacement parts will no longer be available. We have a backup radio located on the back of the 
police station that is also also due to be replaced. We have budgeted yearly in separate Capital Reserve 
Accounts to replace these radios during the 2017/2018 fiscal year. Since the primary radios will be subjected to 
the elements of nature, and for the security of Town property, I am recommending a small structure (6X8 shed) 
be placed at the radio site to protect these radios from the elements as well as possible vandalism and/or 
destruction of town property. The shed would be equipped with electrical panels, lighting, temperature control, 
PFR walls, VCT flooring and insulated. Director Malasky and Director Greig have indicated that the Town 
would be able to complete all preparatory site work within operating budgets. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Newmarket Police Department is seeking to purchase 3 APX radio consolettes (police primary, fire 

primary and backup) from Motorola (state bid) though their vendor, 2-Way Communication out of Newington, 
NH as we are under contract with 2-Way for dispatch/radio maintenance. These radios can be purchased at a 
discounted rate of 50% off until July 31, 2018. We are requesting as part of this purchase, monies from the 
Dispatch Capital Reserve Account to purchase a 6X8 structure which would be outfitted, delivered and set up 
by 2-Way Communication 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Page 36 of 86



The cost of purchasing the 3 APX radio consolettes would be $10,890. The cost to purchase the 6X8 
structure to protect the radios would be $8,500. The total cost would be $19,390. Currently, the Dispatch 
Capital Reserve Account has a balance of $182,842. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
I would recommend the Town Council release funds from the Newmarket Dispatch Capital Reserve Account, 
not to exceed $19,390 for the purchase of 3 APX radio consolettes and a 6x8 structure that would contain 
these essential emergency services radios. I would recommend that the Town Council authorize the Town 
Administrator to enter into any contracts associated with this purchase. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description Upload Date Type 

Resolution 112017/2018-48 5/14/2018 Cover Memo 

Radios To Be Replaced 5/9/2018 Cover Memo 

Email Quote from 2-Way 5/9/2018 Cover Memo 

Rockingham County Letter 5/9/2018 Cover Memo 

Motorola Quote 5/9/2018 Cover Memo 

Shed Entrance 5/9/2018 Cover Memo 

Shed Rear 5/9/2018 Cover Memo 

Page 37 of 86



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution# 2017/2018-48 

Purchase of 3 APX Radio Consolettes and a 6x8 structure for Police, Fire and EMS 
services to include Costs Associated with Set-up and Installation 

WHEREAS, the Police Department seeks to replace 3 APX Radio Consolettes and purchase a 
6X8 structure to house said radio consolettes. The cost of the radios being $10,890 and the cost 
of the structure with set- up to be $8,500; and 

WHEREAS, the Department's request includes the replacement of police and fire radios, 
delivery of a 6x8 structure along with costs associated with the set-up of the radios within the 
structure; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Dispatch Capital Reserve Account currently has a balance of $182,842; 
and 

WHEREAS, the total cost for the Radio Consolettes, 6x8 structure and costs associated with 
delivery and set-up of said equipment is estimated not to exceed $19,390 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Newmarket Town Council does hereby 
approve the withdrawal of funds not to exceed $19,390 from the Police Dispatch Capital Reserve 
Account for the purpose of purchasing 3 APX Radio Consolettes and a 6x8 structure and to 
authorize the Town Administrator to execute any associated agreements. 

Page 38 of 86



First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

May 16, 2018 

June 6, 2018 

Approved�------------------- 

Dale Pike, Chair Newmarket Town Council 

A True Copy Attest: _ 

Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 39 of 86



9/5/2017 IMG _20170905_ 113316666.Jpg 

/ 

": '  

https:flmal I .google .corn/mall/u/Olf J/ nbox/1 5 e521> 1 a414 32b22 ?projeclot= 1 1/1 Page 40 of 86



5/5/2018 

Structure for radio equipment 

Willlain R. Bartlett <wbartlet1@2-way.biz> 
To: Kyle True <ktrue@newmarketnh.gov> 

HI Chief: 

newmarkefnh.qov Mail - Slructure for radio equipment 

Kyle True <ktrue@newmarketnh.gov> 

Tue, Apr 3, 2018 at 3:06 PM 

We just converted a Reeds Ferry shed into a radio shelter last fall. I think it was pretly slick, see atlached photos. I think 
this is a good way to go, but there is a lot of civil work to consider. Will the Town take care of site prep and electrical 
work? Here is what I have typically carried as part of our scope: 

• Reeds Ferry shed, as shown in photo (includes delivery to 2-Way and ultimately Town site) $3400.00 
• Interior commercial finishes upgrade (FRP walls, VCT flooring and insulation) $1200.00 
• Air conditioner/heat pump $900.00 
• LED Lighting, electrical panel, transfer panel and electrical "rough in". (Needs electrician to complete) $1200.00 

Site grounding ring and bonding to R56 standards. (In collaboration with site work by Town) $1800.00 

I'm estimating a cost of $8500.00 for our scope above. You would need to add site work and the electrician to sew in the 
generator and complete the panel wiring. We can certainly collaborate on more of the work to reduce the cost to the 
Town. What are your thoughts? 

Regards, 

William R. Bartlett C.E. T. certified electron/cs teclmlclan 

Owner, Operations Manager 
2-Way Communications Service, Inc. - Since 1954 - 

MOTOROLA SERVICE ELITE SPECIALIST 

603-431-6288 ext.1725 www.2-way.biz 

From: l<yle True [mallto:ktrue@newmarketnh.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 3, 2018 2:04 PM 
To: William R. Bartlett <wbartlett@2-way.biz> 
Subject: Re: Structure for radio equipment 

(Quoled lexl hidden) 

2 attachments 

IMG_20170624_ 134620090.Jpg 
1495K 

h ttps:lf mal Lg ocqle.comana il/u/0/?ui =2 &i k=2cf 2bb3d 2 O&J sver=awrWbf OF cF s.en .&cbl =g ma ii_ f e _ 18042 9.15 _p3 &view=pt&n1sg = 1628ce 7 5e4 f 69367 &q= bil I &qs= tru ei Page 41 of 86



1\ ttchaet U. I /111Y:'(III 

f fi'.1111 Sl1er{t} 

September 28, 2017 

Newmarket Police Department 
Attn: Chief Kyle True 
70 Exeter St 
Newmarket, NH 03857 

Dear Chief True: 

Office of the Sheriff 
Rockingham County 

I 

' '  I  J  

Recently, Rockingham County Sheriffs Office undertook a major project with Motorola to upgrade our radio 
transmitter sites for better reception when dispatching for fire calls. In doing so, Motorola suggested a 

changeover to Linear Simulcast Modulation on the digital (police) side to greatly improve coverage throughout 
the county. This changeover required a software reprogram to the radios. Motorola assured us that the 
changeover would work with all existing radios. Unfortunately, this was not the case. 

Please refer to the attached letter from Motorola for a full explanation ofwhal occurred during the changeover. 

Because the modulation change was not possible with older Motorola Astra Spectra mobile radios, Motorola is 
offering a 50% discount off the retail price on new radios, along with free removal and installation. See the 
attached radio offers. This offer is being made to !!lJ. police and fire agencies within Rockingham County. The 
program begins November I, 20 17 and ends July 3 1 ,  20 18. 

This is an opportunity for any police or fire agency within Rockingham County planning lo purchase new mobile 
radios during this period to receive the discount. Regrettably, the offer does not apply to portable radios. I have 
been advised that all Motorola vendors are aware of this offer. 

***For the police agencies for which Rockingham County dispatches, it is crucial that Motorola Astro 
Spectra mobile radios be removed from service prior to the modulation changeover. 

The changeover can only take place when all Motorola Astro Spectra mobile radios have been 
replaced or removed from service. *** 

Please note that this modulation change only impacts the digital (police) side of the system. It does not affect the 
Seacoast fire (analog) side. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Michael G. Hureau 

MGH/mdb 

Enclosures 
IO I North Road • Brentwood, New Hampshire 03833 • (603) 679-2241 • FAX: (601) 67<J-9<174 

www.rockso.org 
Page 42 of 86



0 0 0 0 0 0 

"' 
0 

"' 
0 :;! 0 

M .; 

" 
ci ci 

"' 
0 � 0 a, 0 

n 

"' 
� 

:::- 
M 

..; 

Page 43 of 86



Page 44 of 86



Page 45 of 86



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO A BOARD, 
COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE POSITION WITIDN THE 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET 

Applicant's Name: Michael LaBranche 

RECEIVED 

t  '  

[, 

,'¥ 

,.1 
. TOWN OF NEW MARKET. 

A0;,.1fNISTRft TOR'S 0Fl=!CE 

Address: 18 Durell Dr. 

Newmarket Registered Voter: Yes 

American Citizen: Yes 

Email address: mdjjs@aol.com 

Phone/Cell: 603-396-2547 

Number of Years as Resident: 64 

I feel the following experience and background qualifies me for this position:· 

Member of Newmarket Town Council for 7 years, 2 years as Chairman. While on the 
Council served as Council Rep to the Planning Board and CIP Committee. During my 
time on the Councill saw the development of the Mill buildings and worked with various 
people and organizations to help get the project completed. 
Served 2 years as a Trustee of the Trustfunds. 

My employment over the last 41 years has been as Operations Manager of a business 
located in Brentwood, NH. During that time I have learned how to grow and adjust to 
changes within the business. 

I have for the last 64 years called Newmarket my home and will continue to do so. 

-- -·- 
Page 46 of 86



Date 

You are welcome to submit a letter or res1une wlth this form. AllJJliCants qre requested to attend the 
Council nzeeting to address the Town Council prior to the d"ecision making process. Applicants will be 
notified of the time and dote of this meeting In advance. Thank you for your application and interest In the 
Town of Newmarket. 

'/II, .. U, ....... "'-- 

-· � ..... 

Page 47 of 86



5/3112018 

TITLE: 

PREPARED BY: 

Item Coversheet 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

June6, 2018 

Resolution #2017/2018-49 - Tiger House Repairs and Painting 

Greg Mades, Director of Facilities 

Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1, 1991 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS - RECOMMENDATION: 

I recommend passage of this resolution. 

BACKGROUND: 
it has been determined that the Tiger House (Tub House) requires extensive repairs and painting due to deterioration. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Director of Facilities has created and placed out for a competitive bidding on March 5, 2018 a Request for Proposals which was advertised, placed on our 
website, email solicitations sent out, and construction reporting companies were notified. A public bid open was conducted on March 29, 2018 at 1 1  :30an1 at 
Newmarket Town Hall with two respondents providing proposals to our solicitation. We received proposals from Educational Building Consultants $18,800.00 
and Target New England $27,380.00. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

We reviewed both submissions, contacted the low apparent qualified bidder, and compared the submission to our cost projections ($15,400.00) we 
feel the Educational Building Consultants meets the requirements as detailed in our Request for Proposal. The scope of work has increased from 
our original $15,400 to $18,800.00 due to additional wood rot and a failed window since our survey last summer. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
We are recorrunending that the Town Council authorizes the Town Administrator to enter into an agreement with Educational Building Consultants for Tiger 
House repairs and painting in the amount of $18,800.00 utilizing funds from 2018/20 ! 9 budget Operations Repairs/Replacement funds 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description 
Resolution 20172018-49 
Bid Tabs,_progosals, and RFP 

https://newmarket.novusagenda.comfAgendaWebfCoverSheet.aspx?ltem10;::41 

Upload Date 
5/31/2018 
5/16/2018 

Type 
Cover Memo 
Cover Me1110 

111 
Page 48 of 86



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution 2017 /2018 - 49 
Authol"izing the Town Administrator enter into an agreement for Tiger House Repairs and 

Painting: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

it has been determined that the Tiger House is in need of exterior repairs and painting; 
and 

the Director of Facilities created a Request for Proposal submission with two proposals 
being received for repairs and painting based on our request; and 

the Tiger House is in need of rot repairs, window replacement, door replacement and 
painting to protect the facility; and 

the Town Administrator recommends that the Town enters into a contract with 
Educational Building Consultants to address the repairs and painting of the Tiger House; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NEWMARKET TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

The Town Council authorizes the Town Administrator to enter into an agreement with 
Educational Building Consultants to provide repairs and painting services as detailed in 
our Request for Proposal dated March 5, 2018 for a cost of$18,800.00. Project funding 
derived from the Building and Grounds Repairs and Replacement fund within Fiscal year 
2018/2019 approved budget. 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

June 6, 2018 

Approved: _ 
Dale Pike, Chair Town Council 

A True Copy Attest:--------------------� 
Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 49 of 86



Newmarket Facilities and Grounds Department 

Conducted by:�=G,_'<-.,.,,_et'_,_-=""-/Y'_...e. __ l.EJ _ 
r"'-'Y Ill'�- 

Opening Location: J:;i.c, L iii 'SS 

RFPIRFQTabulatio�et � 
RFP/RFP Project Type: Kt=? L� .,-g_ --1::hl "'£° � ,v<r�Vl 1 

" RFP/RFQ Project Location: J::cst>t. /Jo vJ e t 7t::r J1M!! ,,1/ 

Date due: 3 Z l � I 8 Time due: fl : .?0 

Submission Type: RFP RFQ RFP/RFQ 

Bid Amount: 
1 8 , 8 0 0 . 0 0  

Submission By: 
I.Educa;h,n a.I l!:>u,ld1"j Con.,ulfanb 

2.C� N£ Hufpnca 6 � tsfttrrlinoo d 7. 3 8 o. cf) 

Notes 

3. _ 

4. _ 

5. _ 

6. _ 

Town of Newmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Gmarles@newmarketuh.gov 

Page 50 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Painting and Repairs to the Tiger House" 

Propose! Cost submission: 'if,, I 'i'5 8-o O � o O 
16.z, / d '-'-")�::,_(Corpornlion, Firm or Company) 
- 0<.,...vf\f c.- (Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 

Bidder:C0

J...:.c_o...+1 of\.<:<. ( 

:P::e. � \ d, ..J\ ::I By: Print 
Name: ---s:..._Me ', �,,.,_(,. 

Title: p � '.>\J d\ 1 

Mailing Address: 

Zip Code: ----�- 
DATE .3 /{).k/j[ 
Telephon�"l�'j�o.JD.;),ax: _ 
E-Mail 2:J' IV\ �ook (e, {Ji) fve.£CYVJ 
NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 
By signing this submission you agree to nil terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the right to accept or "''" '"' ··� 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 186 Main Street Newmarket, New Hampshire !-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Otnarles@ne,vtnarketnh.gov 

Page 51 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Painting and Repairs to the Tiger House" 

Proposal Cost submission: 

(Corporation, Finn or Company) 

(Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 

d/lon >,eJY 7 JVf/ () 'icPJd 
Zip Code: Q 3/< /IJ 

DATE:. 3-oJK'-/<f" 

Telephone: cl> '3- 3R,2·()fff'ax: _ 

E-Mail: ft>.r3etneu1 e "jland@3 raa;I, com 

NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 

Mailing Address: ?o B C2 x J 
2 
b 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 52 of 86



Newmarket Facilities and Grounds Department 

Town of Newmarket 
Request for Proposals 

"Painting and Repairs to the Tiger House" 

March 5, 2018 

The Town of Newmarket is accepting bids to make repairs to wood trim, windows, and painting of the "Tiger House" 
located on South Main Street, Newmarket, New Hampshire. 

The project shall consist of repairing of rotted wood on fascia, soffit, corner trim, and window/door trim. The garage 
doors cross bucking and door trim will be replaced with PVC dimensional boards to prevent continued deterioration of 
these areas. The PVC should be based of Royal with board texturing exposed to better match the existing conditions. All 
fastener holes shall be filled using a non-molding caulk in white. 

The work shall consist of cleaning and preparing wood surfaces and applying protective paint coatings. All loose paint 
and chipping shall be scraped, wire wheeled, sanded or other methods to remove any materials unsuitable to receive 
primer and paint. The area shall be made clean at the end of each day of work, the walkway shall be kept clear of debris 
at all times. The project shall be left clean upon project completion. 

Material 

Specification, painting material shall meet the following requirements: 

Exterior paint primer shall conform to the requirements of the manufacturer 

• Exterior paint shall conform to the requirements of to the requirements of the manufacturer. The colors samples of 
the finish paint shall be chosen by the owner based on samples provided by the vendor. The colors shall be based 
on existing color styles and period colors for this type of building. The second coat of paint shall be based on 
exterior eggshell body and semi-gloss trim color where PVC is not used. 

Surface preparation 

All surfaces to be painted/primed shall be thoroughly cleaned before the application of paint/primer. Pitch pockets and 
knots shall be scraped and sealed with an exterior sealer. Previously painted surfaces shall be scraped and brushed to 
remove any checked or blistered paint and all excess chalk. 

Town ofNewmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 53 of 86



Application of paint/primer 
Surfaces shall be clean and dry during paint/primer application. No paint/primer shall be applied until the prepared 
surfaces have been inspected and approved for paint/primer application. 

Surfaces of new wood shall be painted with I brush coat of exterior primer paint and two brush coats of exterior paint 
unless otherwise. 

Paints/primers shall be thoroughly mixed at the time of application. 

Each paint and primer coat shall be applied in such a manner as to produce a coating film of uniform thickness with a 
finished surface free of runs, drops, ridges, laps, or excessive brush marks. The minimum drying time between 
applications shall be as prescribed by the manufacturer of the paint/primer and not before the previous paint/primer 
application being thoroughly dry. 

The surface of each dried coating shall be cleaned as necessary before application of the next coat. 

Atmospheric conditions 
Unless otherwise specified by the manufacturer of the coating products, paint and primer shall not be applied when the 
temperature of the wood surface or of the surrounding air is less than 55 degrees Fahrenheit. Coatings shall not be applied 
when atmospheric conditions result in moisture condensation on the surface to be painted/primed. Surfaces protected from 
atmospheric conditions by special cover or enclosure, heating, or ventilation shall remain to provide full protection until 
the paint/primer is thoroughly dry. 

Window Replacement door replacement 

The window located direct adjacent to the left of the door shall be replaced with a wooded replacement style window to 
best match the existing style and type by Marvin or approved equal. Remaining windows within the building needed 
additional glazing or repairs to protect the window shall be surveyed and included within the scope by the contractor. The 
existing entry door shall be replaced with a Pella Craftsman's style door in fiberglass with new frame, interior trim to 
match and exterior trim to match. Exterior door trim maybe PVC by Royal with texture side out. 

Please note: 
The existing paint on the building in areas is prior to 1978 and shall be addressed accordingly to Lead Renovator 
requirements of the Environmental Protection Agency. All safety precautions shall be taken to ensure for a safe 
environment. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Grnarles@newn1arketnh.gov 

Page 54 of 86



Funding for this project is available July I, 2018 

All questions regarding this project shall be directed to: 

Town of Newmarket 
Greg Maries, Director of Facilities 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

All submissions shall be in a seal envelope cleared marked "Painting and Repairs to the Tiger House" 

Submissions shall be: 

Town of Newmarket 
Attn.: Greg Maries, Director ofFacilities 
Town Hall 
186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 03857 

Bids shall be received no later than March 29, 2018 at I l:30am, Town of Newmarket, Town Hall, 186 Main Street, Newmarket, New 
Hampshire 03857 at which time they will be read publically. Any bids received after the time and date specified will not be 
considered. 

The Town of Newmarket reserves the right to waive any of the formalities of this RFP, to request additional information from any 
respondent, to negotiate with any respondent, to negotiate with more than one respondent, to reject any or all proposals or parts of 
proposals, to solicit new proposals, and to award contracts to one or more respondents or to reject any or all respondents as it deems in 

its best interest. The issuance of this RFP does not guarantee that a contract will be awarded. Any proposal received after the time 
specified will be considered a late proposal. Following evaluation of all proposals, the Town may do one or more of the following: (I) 
conduct interviews with representatives of one or more of the respondents; (2) select an apparent successful respondent and enter into 
contract negotiations; selected for award based on the proposals, , and commence negotiations with those respondents, and then invite 
those respondents to submit best and final offers; or (4) reject all proposals ifit is determined to be in the best interests of the 
Newmarket School District. 

Town of Newmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 55 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Painting and Repairs to the Tiger House" 

Proposal Cost submission: _ 

Bidder:--------------- (Corporation, Firm or Company) 

By: (Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 
Print 
Name: _ 

Title: _ 

Mailing Address: 

Zip Code: _ 

Telephone: Fax: _ 

E-Mail: _ 

NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature ofa duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Grnarles@nevirmarketnh.gov 

Page 56 of 86



Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: June6, 2018 

TITLE: Resolution #2017/2018-50 - Police Station Parking Drainage and Pavement Repairs 

PREPARED BY: Gregory Maries, Director of Facilities 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
I have reviewed this resolution and recommend its passage. 

BACKGROUND: 
We placed out to a competitive bidding process an Request for Proposals to make drainage and pavement 
repairs to the Police Station parking Jot. we have a large water pooling area which creates slippery conditions 
in the winter months and stagnate water in non-freezing weather. The standing water has caused many areas of 
cracking, surface failure, and Jose of pavement. Om base bid was to install porous concrete and make selected 
pavement repairs. 

DISCUSSION: 
A public bid opening was held on May 9, 2018 at 11 :OOam in Town Hall with Five (5) respondents to our 
solicitation. 

Lupoli Excavators LLC, $13,143.00 
WP Davis Excavation $17,9075.00 
Advanced Excavating and Paving $17,650.00 
SK McDonald Company $15,425.00 
Stormwater Compliance $17,890.00 

We met with the low apparent bidder to qualify their proposal, reviewed the added scope request, and 
approach to the project with the contractor. The installation of the porous concrete sections decreases our 
impact within our MS4 permitting, creates water treatment measures for stormwater run-off, and effectively 
deals with the water control issues in the parking lot. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The low apparent bidder felt comfortable with their submission, we reviewed the added work request and they 

Page 57 of 86



submitted a final price based on the requested adjustments. Our original projected cost for this project was 
$31,000.00 with this amount being approved in the 2018/2019 budget. The total adjusted proposal cost is 
$28,683.00 to installed the specified porous concrete panels, repair several section of failing pavement, seal 
coat the parking lot and stripe the parking lines. The Building Improvement Capital reserve find has a CUJTent 
balance of $128, 111 .00 with an additional $225,000.00 being add July I, 2018 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recommend that the Town Council authorizes the Town Administrator to enter into an agreement with 
Lupoli Excavators, LLC of New Hampton, New Hampshire for Police Station drainage and parking lot 
repairs for a total cost of$28,683.00 to come from the Building Improvements Capital Reserve Fund 
2018/2019 approved budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description 

Resolution #2017/2018-50 

Recap, bid tabs, proposals, R FP 

Upload Date 

5/22/2018 

5/22/2018 

Type 

Cover Memo 

Cover Memo 

Page 58 of 86



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution 2017 /2018 - 50 
Authorizing the Town Administrator enter into a n agreement with Lupoli Excavators, 

LLC to make Police Department Parking Lot drainage and paving repairs : 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

it has been determined that our Police Department has flooding issues and failing 
pavement which impacts safety and asset protection, and 

the Director of Facilities requested proposals from contractors through a Request for 
Proposal (RFP) process, and 

the Police Station parking lot is in need of drainage and pavement repairs, and 

the Town Administrator recommends that the Town enters into an agreement with Lupoli 
Excavators, LLC of North Hampton, New Hampshire to conduct services as detailed in 
our Request for Proposal dated April 26, 2018 with additional services, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NEWMARKET TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

The Town Council authorizes the Town Administrator to enter into an agreement with 
Lupoli Excavators, LLC of North Hampton, New Hampshire construction services as 
detailed in our Request for Proposal "Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 
dated April 26, 2018 in the amount of $28,683.00 utilizing Building and Ground Capital 
Building Reserve Fund 2018/2019 approved budget. 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

June 6, 2018 

Approved:------,--------,-,------------- 
Dale Pike, Chair Town Council 

A True Copy Attest: _ 
Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 59 of 86



Newmarket Facilities and Grounds Department 

RFP/RFQ Tabulation Sheet 

RFP/RFQProjectType: Pouc.c;: J)eMR(IM.€"NT PAR.k,:.is Lo'f Od.Atrv &pti.,·t., 
RFP/RFQ Project Location: f/(£11'{/Jli&<ef "{7t:, <A Gil l),., j)tM,.'(M@l'C 

Date Due: � I( CJ 'UJ/ 8 Time Due: I/: C(} Conducted By: Gv-� (Yla.ri,Q. 
·� I ----'--''---'---'----- i 

OpeningLocation: /00,)N �L<... P� '&-tkrt'YlaJ....., 

Submission Type RFP RFQ RFP/RFQ 

I. Submission By: 4.-po l I E 1',(q v:q :i:oa, U.C. Bid Amount� 13, l 'i-& ,a• Notes:-------- 

2. Submission By: U:.f Dav IS £xca11ah1:.n Bid Amount� l 1. 'j 15,  
0" Notes: \o,ci. cd -{u-n a B 

Submission By: Ad1A'.111�d. f'!(<.cu.anfl<I ru,.d Bid Amount' 11, lo 50. 
o• Notes: bd a l:kv-na:te. 3. 

Pa.v�n � ' 
• dO 

4. Submission By: Sic. McDonAld. C.00tP91'-'1 Bid Amount: l S, 't Z.5. Notes: be\ q, l -ler-11..(l.ie.. 

Submission By: �dtv: (h,-,,.pf i,,,c.Q ·1 � Notes: \o1d Ql� 5. Bid Amount: ] 8 "I Cl, 

Town of Newmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Gmarles@ne,vmarketnh.gov 

Page 60 of 86



Newmarket Facilities and Grounds Department 

Town of Newmarket 
Request for Proposals 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

April 16, 2018 

The Town of Newmarket is accepting bids to remove pavement and install Stormcrete porous panels per plans 
and specifications. The work is to be located at Newmarket Police Department 70 Exeter Street, Newmarket 
New Hampshire, 03857 

The project shall consist of saw cutting the existing pavement area to an opening of eight (8) feet wide and 
twenty-nine (29) feet long area with care taken to maintain a clean cut edge. The area will be excavated to a 
depth of thirty (30) inches as detailed on drawing DI dated 10/30/2017. Grading and final elevation shall match 
existing grade area outside of the area to be excavated. Field grading adjustments shall be made to create 
positive drainage of the affected area towards the Stormcrete panels and catch basin. 

Installation: 
The excavation shall be back filled with a base layer of'/., washed crushed stone to a depth of twelve (12) inches 
to allow the installation of a six (6) inch SDR-5 perforated pipe and cap as detailed on drawing D I .  The 
perforated pipe shall have a pitch of not less than (2) percent conveying water towards the catch basin. The 
catch basin will be cored to allow for the installation of the perforated piping to enter the basin. The area 
around the penetration shall be sealed using hydraulic cement or other approved method. The area shall be 
backfilled to a depth of seven (7) inches below finished grade using '/., washed crushed stone. A course of 3/8 
washed crushed stone shall be installed direct below the Stormcrete area of installation ( 4' x 25 ') to a depth 
allowing the Stormcrete panels to be placed at final grade height. 

Paving: 
The areas remaining to be paved shall be back-filled to a depth to allow for a two (2) inch compacted binder or 
course coat and one and one-half (1 !/,) compacted finish coat to match the existing grading and Stormcrete 
panels. Install Yi pre-molded expansion joint around the Stormcrete slab area as detailed on drawing DI during 
the paving process. 

Town of Newmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Gmar\es@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 61 of 86



An allowance of $2,500.00 shall be carried within the proposal for additional repairs to area as identified by the 
Director of Facilities. The areas shall be saw cut to a depth to ensure stable sub straight, filled and compacted 
to finished elevation of the surrounding area. 

Add Alternate: 

Crack filling and seal coating of the parking lot area. Crack filling materials may be hot applied rubber or 
polymer asphalts, or cold applied emulsion-based products. The emulsion products assist with forming a good 
adhesive bond with the crack wall and additives such as Styrene Butadiene Rubber (SBR) latex ensure that the 
material can endure some degree of movement. In some cases, hot applied fiber modified asphalt binders may 
be used. Seal coating shall be coal-tar emulsion sealer and asphalt-based emulsion seal, add approximately 1-2 
pounds of sand per gallon of emulsion to increase the solids content while also minimizing the liability against 
slips and falls. Seal coating shall be based on average, 50-60 square feet of asphalt will be covered per gallon 
of emulsion. 

An acrylic-based hardening additive or a polymer-modified material may be included in this formula for 
additional strength and longevity. 

Apply the sealcoating formula using either a squeegee, spray, or a combination of both, depending on the 
conditions of the lot. 

Parking lot stripping shall be included within the scope of the add alternate. Stripping shall remain the same 
pattern and location as existing stripping prior to seal coating. 

Funding for this project is available July 1, 2018 

All questions regarding this project shall be directed to: 

Town ofNewmarket 
Greg Maries, Director of Facilities 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

All submissions shall be in a seal envelope cleared marked "Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

Submissions shall be: 

Town of Newmarket 
Attn.: Greg Maries, Director of Facilities 

Town of Newmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 
Gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 62 of 86



Town Hall 
186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 03857 

Bids shall be received no later than May 9, 2018 at 11  :OOarn, Town of Newmarket, Town Hall, 186 Main Street, 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 03857 at which time they will be read publically. Any bids received after the time 
and date specified will not be considered. 

The Town of Newmarket reserves the right to waive any of the formalities of this RFP, to request additional 
information from any respondent, to negotiate with any respondent, to negotiate with more than one respondent, 
to reject any or all proposals or parts of proposals, to solicit new proposals, and to award contracts to one or more respondents 
or to reject any or all respondents as it deems in its best interest. The issuance of this RFP does not guarantee that a contract will be 
awarded. Any proposal received after the time specified will be considered a late proposal. Following evaluation of all proposals, the 
Town may do one or more of the following: (I} conduct interviews with representatives of one or more of the respondents; (2) select 
an apparent successful respondent and enter into contract negotiations; selected for award based on the proposals, , and commence 
negotiations with those respondents, and then invite those respondents to submit best and final offers; or (4) reject all proposals ifit is 
determined to be in the best interests of the Newmarket School District. 

Town of Newmarket 
Facilities and Grounds Department 

186 Main Street 
Newmarket, New Hampshire 

1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles<@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 63 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

Base Proposal Cost submission: _ 

Alternate cost Proposal: _ 

Bidder: (Corporation, Firm or Company) 

By: (Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 
Print 

Name: 
--------------------- 

Title: _ 

Mailing Address: 

Zip Code: _ 

DATE: _ 

Telephone: Fax: _ 

E-Mail: _ 

Does the ownership or stock holders have relatives currently employed by the Town of Newmarket or the Newmarket School 
District? 

Yes No lfyes: please indicate the relationship _ 

NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles@newn1arket11h.gov 

Page 64 of 86



... 

� 

1ii �i ]11 
s 

s 

11 ii !1 
p 

1! •i ;! 
£1 

0 
m 

� 
' VI 

)> 

z 
0 

z 

s 
m 
VI 

� 
z 
p 

0 
... 

Page 65 of 86



.; 
;i 

Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

BaseProposalCostsubmission: $ 1 7 , 9 7 5 . 0 0  (Includes $ 2 , 5 0 0 . 0 0  Allowance) 

Alternate cost Propose): �$4�, _5_o_o_. o_o _ 

Blddcr:william P Davia Excavation LLc(Corporation,Firm or Company) 

By: William Davis 
I 

Manager 
Print 

(Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 

Name: _ _,lc,,L=..c..=c....-�.=..:"::::::,=y..i -'-t"ft:l==A.,.,lr,w,E�g_,_ _ 

Mailing Address: 
PO Box 758 - Hampton, NH 03843 

Zip Code: ..:Oc.::3.=.8.=.4 3=---- 

DATE: 05/09/2018 

Telephone: 603-944-5844 Fax:------ 

E-Mail: WILL@WPDAVISEXCAVATION. COM 

Does tbe ownership or stock holders have relatives currently employed by the Town of Newmarket or the Newmarket School 
District? 

Yes __ No__,_x=--_lfyes: please indicate the relationship _ 

NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
J-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles@newmarketnh.gov 

Page 66 of 86



LUPOLI EXCAVATORS, L.L.C . 

••• 56  Lafayette Road + North Hampton, NH 03862 ·2405+ 
Phone 603-964-1949 + Fax 603-964-4740 

E-Mall: Jupolhccavators@aoJ.com 

PROPOSAL 

Page I of2 

PROPOSAL SUBMITIED TO: Greg Martes 

NAME: Town Of Newmarket 

STREET: 186 Main Street 

CITY: Newmarket 

STATE: NH 

DATE: May 9, 201a· 

EMAIL: GMarles@Newmarketnh.com 

JOB NAME: Police Department Parking Lot Drainage 
Repairs 

STREET: 70 Exeter Road 

CITY: Newmarket 

We hereby submit the following quotation on the above referenced project: 

I) Mobilization 
2) Saw Cut Approx. 76 LF of Asphalt 
3) R&D 3 CY of Asphalt 
4) Excavate for Drain As Per Plan (8' x 30'x 2 Y,') 

5) Core I Existing Catch Basin For 6" Drain Line 
6) S&I Fabric At Bottom Of Excavation 
7) S&I Approx. 22 CY of %" Washed Stone 
8) S&I Approx. 3 CY of3/8" Washed Pea Stone 
9) S&I 30 LF of 6" Perforated SDR 35 With End Cap 
IO) S&I 5-5'x4' Stonncrete Slabs As Per Plan 
11) S&I Approx. 3 Tons of Asphalt (2" Binder, I Y," Top) 
12) Allowance of $2,500.00 Included In Base Bid 

TOTAL $13,143.00 

NOTES: 

I) No Permits and Fees In Base Bid 
2) Bid Does Not Include Add Alternate 

lotiat _ 

Newmarket Police Dept Drainage Repair 

Page 67 of 86



Page 2 of2 

Note: Price of bituminous concrete pavement Is based on the NHDOT price of liquid asphalt. This price is 
Subject to sudden fluctuation which may require price adjustment per NHDOT standard specifications. 

The following Items are not Included In the above referenced proposal unless specifically stated In said proposal; 
• No permits, fees or bonds (Including Town, City or State) tapping fees for water, sewer, etc. 
• No "EPA Storm Water Program' (Federal or State) included. 
• No police detail if required. 
• No ledge or boulder excavation larger than one cubic yard. 
• No unsultables if encountered. 
• No demolition or abatement. 
• No Hazmat. 
• No de-watering If necessary. 
• No concrete work. 
• No layout. 
• No landscaping or lawn maintenance. 
• No trees, shrubs, plantings, etc. 
• No warranty on seeding and/or hydroseeding if there Is no irrigation system In place or proper lawn maintenance Is 

not performed by others. 
• No winter conditions. 
• This proposal Is based upon current fuel rates, a fuel surcharge may be added for fuel related items 

(i.e.; plastic, transportation, asphalt, etc.) at the actual start time of project. Fuel surcharges may be added at 
each requisition. 

All material Is guaranteed to be as specified. Any alterations or deviation from above specifications Involving 
extra costs, w/11 be executed only upon written orders, and w/11 become an extra charge over and above the 
estimate. Ali agreements are contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. This proposal 
subject to acceptance within 30 days and Is void thereafter at the option of the undersigned. 
Terms Net 30. A finance charge of 1.50 percent per month (18.00 percent per year) will be added to accounts over 
30 days past due. The purchaser agrees to pay all costs and expenses of collection lncludlng reasonable 
Attomey fees. 

Authorized Signature; Nickolas Lupoli 
LUPOLI EXCAVATORS, L.L.C. 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 

The above prices, specifications and conditions are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. 
Payment will be made as agreed. 

ACCEPTED: 

DATE: _ 

Newmarket Police Dept Drainage Repair 

SIGNATURE: _ 

SIGNATURE: _ 

Page 68 of 86



LUPOLI EXCAVATORS, L.L.C. 

56 Lafayette Road North Hampton, NH 03862 -2405 
Phone 603-964-1949 Fax 603-964-4740 

E-Mall: lupolixcavators@aol.com 

PROPOSAL 

Page I of 2 

PROPOSAL SUBMITIED TO: Greg Maries 

NAME: Town or Newmarket 

STREET: 186 Main Street 

CITY: Newmarket 

STATE: NH 

DATE: May 14, 2018 

EMAIL: GMarles@Newmarketnh.com 

JOB NAME: Police Department Parking Lot Pavement 

STREET: 70 Exeter Road 

CITY: Newmarket 

We hereby submit the following quotation on the above referenced project: 

PAVEMENT 

I) R&D of approx. 30 CY of asphalt 
2) S&I approx. 12 CY of crushed gravel under pavement 
3) S&I approx. 43 tons of asphalt (2" binder IV,"  top) 
4) Crack seal & seal coat as per plan 
5) Restripe as per plan 

TOTAL $15,540.00 

NOTES: 

l) No Permits and Fees In Base Bid 

lntial _ 

Page 2 of2 

Newmarket Police Dept Pavement 

Page 69 of 86



Note: Price of bituminous concrete pavement is based on the NHDOT price of liquid asphalt. This price Is 
Subject to sudden fluctuation which may require price adjustment per NHDOT standard specifications. 

The following items are not Included in the above referenced proposal unless specifically stated in said proposal: 
• No permits, fees or bonds (including Town, City or State) tapping fees for water, sewer, etc. 
• No "EPA Storm Water Program" (Federal or State) included. 
• No police detail if required. 
• No ledge or boulder excavation larger than one cubic yard. 
• No unsuitables if encountered. 
• No demolition or abatement. 
• No Hazmat. 
• No de-watering if necessary. 
• No concrete work. 
• No layout. 
• No landscaping or lawn maintenance. 
• No trees, shrubs, plantings, etc. 
• No warranty on seeding and/or hydroseeding if there is no irrigation system in place or proper lawn maintenance 

is not performed by others. 
• No winter conditions. 
• This proposal is based upon current fuel rates, a fuel surcharge may be added for fuel related items 

(i.e.; plastic, transportation, asphall, etc.) at the actual start time of project. Fuel surcharges may be added at 
each requisition. 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. Any alterations or deviation from above specifications Involving 
extra costs, will be executed only upon written orders, and w/11 become an extra charge over and above the 
estimate. All agreements are contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. This proposal 
subject to acceptance within 30 days and is void thereafter at the option of the undersigned. 
Terms Net 30. A finance charge of 1.50 percent per month (18.00 percent per year) will be added to accounts 
over 30 days past due. The purchaser agrees to pay all costs and expenses of collection Including reasonable 
Attorney fees. - 

Authorized Signature: Nickolas Lupoli 
LUPOLI EXCAVATORS, L.L.C. 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 

The above prices, specifications and conditions are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. 
Payment will be made as agreed. 

ACCEPTED: 
SIGNATURE: _ 

DATE: _ 

SIGNATURE: _ 

Newmarket Police Dept Pavement 

Page 70 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

Base Proposal Cost submission: � \ � \'\'.;,. 0 0 
I 

Alternate cost Proposal: -�l,l�\uB�-------- 

Bidder: Lupoli Excavators LLC 

By: Nathan Lupolj Print 
Name:�� 
Title: Project Manager 

Mailing Address: 
56 Lafayette Road 

North Hampton. NH 
Zip Code: ¥03�8�6�2�-- 
DATE: MayS.2018 

(Corporation, Firm or Company) 
(Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 

Telephone: 964-1949 Fax: 9644740 

E-Mail: JupoUxcayators@aol.com 
Does the ownership or stock holden have relatives currently employed by the Town or Newmarket or the Newmarket School District? 
Yes __ No, _ _,_X.___ __ lfyes: please indicate the relationship _ 

NOTE: Bids must bear tho handwritten signature ofa duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid, 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
1-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles@new1narketnh.goy 

Page 71 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 

Town of Newmarket 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

Base Proposal Cost submission: $1 7, 890. 00 

Alternate cost Proposal: $16,705.00 
Sections of the parking area require patching not crack sealing and require cutting out and replacement 

Bidder: Stormwater Compliance LLC (Corporation, Firm or Company) 

)d ?l.J By: '">! (Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) Prin-t---�--------------- 

Name: Gregg Novick 

Title: President 

Mailing Address: 

163 Thadeus Street, South Portland, Maine 

Zip Code: 04106 

DATE: MayB,2018 

Telephone: 1-877-271-9055 Fax: same 

E-Mail: gnovick@stormwatercomp.com 

Does the ownership or stock holders have relatives currently employed by the Town of Newmarket or the Newmarket School 
District? 

Yes __ NoXXX If yes: please indicate the relationship _ 

NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town ofNewmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
I-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gn1arles@newrnarkctnh.gov 

Page 72 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

Base Proposal Cosl submission: I; b, YJ. (;, QO 

Alternate cost Proposal: J t(fiS,00 

LL(., 
SK /l14'"DoQA IJ CoM ft!'1:1 (Corporation, Firm or Company) 

By: -----<�d.�::::"::::::====r-=:::' :::::c_ __ (Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 
Print 7 

Title: JYI. ,,.,, 0.-e:::: 

Bidder: 

Mailing Address: 

az2;;. f 

DA TE: �S-'----'/'--''f'----'/-'-'/ //<>---------- 

Telephone: 2 )'/ -S]fJ'J Fax: _ 

E-Mail: <J'411,(2,d<lf:1c.dor1<>. 1¢lompa"j· "'""' 

Doe, the ownership or stock holders have relatives currently employed by the Town of Newmarket or the Newmarket School 
District? 

Yes No )( If yes: please indicate the relationship. _ 

NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid, 

By signing this submission you agree lo all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
I-603-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles(@.newmarketnh.gov 

Zip Code: 

Page 73 of 86



Proposal Submission Form 
Town of Newmarket 

"Police Department Parking Lot Drainage Repairs" 

Base Proposal Cost submission: '11, 1 1 ,  u.50 , ro 
Alternate cost Proposal: � j I Cj:35', o<:J 

Bidder: w,zg ().' (� ij f\,f/ �\Gj (Corporation, Firm or Company) 
�<;Jyji V 

1 <ti..--f.....,�Tv;JJ)___ (Officer, Authorized Individual or Owner) 
Name01/f)f.CJU /1 G[L/ l\lA.S 

Title: �.YI. r 

Ml}�J@Ji 52<' / /t_p/0 G/ZflA.J/1( S1'12££-r 
S,U.Y)( OCL AJ)--/ 

Zip Code:� )5 

DATE: �9 
Telephone: _.L/Js JJ755 Fax:¥?5-55?9 
E-Mail: 81-/f.}WNC'!-fJ!S\JEPJN (__ ,(ON 

Does the ownership or stock holders have relatives currently employed by the Town of Newmarket or the Newmarket School District? 
Yes __ No v' If yes: please indicate the relationship _ 
NOTE: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the organization making the bid. 

By signing this submission you agree to all terms and conditions as detailed in the bid specifications. Town of Newmarket reserves the 
right to accept or reject any submissions. 

Town of Newmarket 

Facilities and Grounds Department 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, New Hampshire 
Hi03-659-3617 Ext 1325 

Gmarles@newmarket11h.gov 

Page 74 of 86



Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1
1 

1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: June6, 2018 

TITLE: Resolution #2017/2018-51 - Newmarket Elementary School Resource Officer 

PREPARED BY: Kyle True, Police Chief 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
Pursuant to the request of the Police Chief and School Board I recommend passage of this resolution. This 
will require a public hearing. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Town of Newmarket is seeking to accept unanticipated funds not to exceed $88,000 from the Newmarket 
School District for purposes of placing a School Resource Officer at the Newmarket Elementary School. 
This is a result ofan uptick in acts of violence within schools across the country and in particularly a high 
profile school shooting in Parkland, Florida. 

Process: On May 15th, the School Board held a public informational session prior to their regularly scheduled 
School Board meeting seeking input from the public relative to placing a School Resource Officer at the 
Newmarket Elementary School. 

Results: The School Board voted 4-1 in favor of placing a School Resource Officer at the Newmarket 
Elementary School. 

DISCUSSION: 
Currently, the Town through its Police Department Budget, funds a Police Officer to be assigned as an SRO 
at the Newmarket Jr./Sr. High School. This officer is assigned specifically at the High School as studies have 
shown that an active incident is more likely to occur within the High School. 

Currently, the Police Department does not have the funds budgeted to assign a Police Officer to the 
Elementary School. It is at the request of the Newmarket School Board to place a School Resource Officer at 
the Elementary School and use funds within the School Departments operating budget to fund this position. 

Currently, the Police Chief and Superintendent have a memorandum of understanding that outlines the current 

Page 75 of 86



SRO position, qualifications, duties and authority of the SRO. The SRO is an employee of the Police 
Department and will take direction and orders from the Police Chief. If funding is approved for this position, 
language would be added to the memorandum of understanding to indicate that the second SRO would also be 
an employee of the Police Department and would take direction and orders from the Police Chief. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The total cost of placing a Police Officer within the Elementary School is approximately $87,613 per year. 
This cost would include salary and associated health benefits for this position. The $87,613 would be paid to 
the Town of Newmarket by the Newmarket School District. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend the Town authorize the Town Administrator to accept unanticipated funds from the Newmarket 
School District not to exceed $88,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description 
Resolution 2017/2018-51 

Request from Superintendent Nadeau 

Upload Date 
5/31/2018 

5/31/2018 

Type 
Cover Memo 
Backup Material 

Page 76 of 86



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution #2017/2018- 51 

Newmarket Elementary School Resource Officer 

The Newmarket School District has requested a School Resource Officer for the 
Newmarket Elementary School from the Newmarket Police Department; and 

The Newmarket School District has agreed to fund such position not to exceed $88,000; 
and 

RSA 31-95:b requires the Town Council to accept unanticipated revenue after a public 
hearing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED BY THE NEWMARKET TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

The Council does hereby accept the $88,000 for the sole purpose of a School Resource 
Officer. 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

June 6, 2018 

Approved: _ 

Dale Pike, Chair Newmarket Town Council 

A True Copy Attest: _ 

Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 77 of 86



Steve Fournier 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Dear Steve, 

Meredith Nadeau 
Wednesday, May 30, 2018 12:08 PM 
Steve Fournier 

School resource officer 

As you are aware, based on their concern for school safety and input from Chief True, the School Board voted on May 
15th to pay for the provision of an additional School Resource Officer for Newmarket Elementary School. Last night, the 
school board confirmed its fiscal support for this position. Please let us know what you need from us to move forward 
with this request. 

Respectfully, 

Meredith 

Sent from my iPad 

1 

Page 78 of 86



Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 

TITLE: 

PREPARED BY: 

June6, 2018 

Ordinance No. 4 2017/2018 -An Ordinance Amending Chapter 30 of the Code of the 
Town of Newmarket, New Hampshire; Making Center Street Traffic Two-Way 

Stephen Fournier, Town Administrator 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend passage of this ordinance. 

BACKGROUND: 
Center Street has been a one way street for a number of years, with traffic only being able to go east. The Do 
Not Enter sign is about 10 to 20 yards up the street, so cars are constantly going the wrong way on the street. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Highway Safety Committee met on May 22 to review changing Center Street to one-way going west. At 
that time, the Director of Public Works indicated that Center Street is 20 feet wide, which is standard for two 
way traffic. This would actually improve the flow of traffic and slow cars in the area. The Highway Safety 
Committee unanimously recommends to the Council making Center Street two-way effective July 1 and after 
notification is made to the residents on the street. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Minimal with new signage. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Highway Safety Conunittee unanimously recommends to the Council making Center Street two-way 
effective July 1 and after notification is made to the residents on fue street, 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description 
Ordinance No 4 2017/2018 

Upload Date 

5/22/2018 

Type 
Cover Memo 

Page 79 of 86



ORDINANCE NO. 04-2017/2018 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 30 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF 

NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE; MAKING CENTRAL STREET TRAFFIC 

TWO WAY 

THE TOWN OF NEWMARKET ORDAINS: 

1. Purpose 

The purpose of this ordinance is to allow two way traffic on Central Street. 

2. Amendment 

Chapter 30 is hereby amended by adding the following article: [Editor's Note: Deleted Items are 
strnek tsrsugh; Items added are bold italicized and u11del'li11ed.] 

ARTICLE II. - STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

Sec. 30-3. - One-way Traffic 

No person operating any motor vehicle on any public way within the 
town shall drive in a direction contrary to posted signs prohibiting such 
direction. The state department of transportation or the town department 
of public works may erect such signs. Such signs shall meet the 
specifications as determined by the state department of transportation 
and laws of the state. The following local public ways are designated for 

one-way traffic: 

(I) CeAtral £t,eet (easterly frnm SpriAg Street le MaiA Street). 

(2) Creighton Street (easterly from Main Street to Prescott Street). 

(3) Short Street (westerly from Prescott Street to Exeter Street). 

(4) Ham Street (easterly from Bay Road to Lamprey Street). 

(5) Church Street (from the intersection of Granite Street in an easterly 
direction to the intersection of Rock Street). 

(6) Cedar Street (from the intersection of Elm Street to the intersection 
of Cedar Street in a northerly direction). 

(7) Beech Street (from the intersection of Elm Street to the intersection 
of Cedar Street in a northerly direction). 

(8) Salmon Street (from the intersection of Beech Street to the 
intersection of Piscassic Street in a westerly direction). 

Page 80 of 86



(9) Piscassic Street (from the intersection of Salmon Street to the 

intersection of Cedar Street in an easterly direction). 

3. Takes Effect 

This ordinance shall take effect July I, 2018 and publication ofnotice as required by RSA 4 7: 18 

First Reading 

Second Reading/Public Hearing 

Final Action by Council 

Approved: 

June 6, 2018 

Dale Pike, Chair Newmarket Council 

A True Copy Attest: 
Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 81 of 86



Town Hall 

186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 

Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, 1727 

Chartered January 1, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: June6, 2018 

Ordinance No. 5 2017/2018 -An Ordinance Amending Chapter 30 of the Code of The 
TITLE: Town of Newmarket, New Hampshire; Making Church Street Traffic One-Way 

(Westerly) 

PREPARED BY: Stephen Fournier; Town Administrator 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend the adoption of this ordinance. 

BACKGROUND: 
We received a request from the owner of the Stone Church to change the one-way traffic flow on Church 
Street from easterly to westerly. This would allow vehicles to get to the Stone Church and other buildings on 
the hill by going up the hill from Main Street. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Highway Safety Committee met on May 22, 2018 and reviewed the request. Tt was determined that there is 
no safety issues with switching the flow of traffic to go up the hill. Instead this would reduce the number of 
cars that go up Church Street and either continue on illegally or tum around and head back down. This would 
also provide easier access to the Stone Church and Historical Society Museum, by allowing for signage on 
Main Street directing people up the hill. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Minimal with sign replacement. The Town may want to consider way finding signs to point this area out in the 
future. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Highway Safety Committee unanimously recommends to the Council making Church Street one-way 
westerly effective July I and after notification is made to the residents on the street. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Description 

Ordinance No 5 2017/2018 

Upload Date 

5/22/2018 

Type 

Co vcr Memo 

Page 82 of 86



@.JIJ...-=======.....,...==============================--,_,@) 

ORDINANCE NO. 05-2017/2018 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 30 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN 
OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE; MAKING CHURCH STREET 
TRAFFIC ONE-WAY (WESTERLY) 

THE TOWN OF NEWMARKET ORDAINS: 

1. Purpose 

The purpose of this ordinance is to regulate one-way traffic on Church Street to a westerly 

direction. 

2. Amendment 

Chapter 30 is hereby amended by adding the following article: [Editor's Note: Deleted Items are 
strnek thrnHgh; Items added are bold if(t/icized and ,uu/er/iued.] 

ARTICLE II. - STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

Sec. 30-3. - One-way Traffic 

No person operating any motor vehicle on any public way within the 
town shall drive in a direction contrary to posted signs prohibiting such 

direction. The slate department of transportation or the town 

department of public works may erect such signs. Such signs shall 
meet the specifications as determined by the state department of 
transportation and laws of the state. The following local public ways 
are designated for one-way traffic: 

(I) Central Street (easterly from Spring Street to Main Street). 

(2) Creighton Street (easterly from Main Street to Prescott Street). 

(3) Short Street (westerly from Prescott Street to Exeter Street). 

(4) Ham Street ( easterly from Bay Road to Lamprey Street). 

(5) Church Street (frem the i0terseetieH ef Gra0ite Street iH a0 easterly 

direetien te the iRterseetie0 ef Reek Street from the curve iu the 

street at approximately 5 Church Street in a westerly direction to 

the intersection with Granite Street). 

(6) Cedar Street (from the intersection of Elm Street to the intersection 

of Cedar Street in a northerly direction). 

(7) Beech Street (from the intersection of Elm Street to the intersection 

of Cedar Street in a northerly direction). 

Page 83 of 86



(8) Salmon Street (from the intersection of Beech Street to the 
intersection of Piscassic Street in a westerly direction). 

(9) Piscassic Street (from the intersection of Salmon Street to the 
intersection of Cedar Street in an easterly direction). 

3. Takes Effect 

This ordinance shall take effect July 1, 2018 and publication ofnotice as required by RSA 47: 18 

First Reading 

Second Reading/Public Hearing 

Final Action by Council 

Approved: 

June 6, 2018 

Dale Pike, Chair Newmarket Council 

A True Copy Attest: 
Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 84 of 86



Steve Fournier 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

H 

eySteve 

Mike Hoffman 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 2:06 PM 
Steve Fournier 

Fwd: Highway Safety Committee Meeting Re: Church Street 

We are following up on our request to evaluate the 
one way 
traffic flow on Church Street. We are hopeful we might be able to schedule a meeting 
soon 

to discuss the merits of changing the current traffic pattern for both safety and ease of transportation reasons. 

The original basis for this initiative is that the State of New Hampshire DOT has denied The Stone Church's request for a 
'Tourist Oriented Directional Sign' (aka Blue Sign). We had applied for a Blue Sign to be located on Route l 08 in 
Durham in the area known as 'Gasoline Alley.' The blue sign was denied because the NHDOT felt the Stone Church was 
'too hard to find' after one would be directed to Newmarket. They indicated 'trailblazing' signs would be needed at Main 
and Chapel as well as Chapel and Granite. Hearing that our business was 'too hard to find' to be permitted to have a 
directional sign installed was a bit of a punch to the gut. 

In reviewing the conditions the NHDOT brought to light, we began to take a critical look at the current traffic pattern 
leading to The Stone Church. We found a number of traffic safety concerns that would support changing the direction of 
the one-way traffic segment of Church Street. They are as follows: 

1 .  Traffic coming to The Stone Church from the north currently most either pass numerous residential units via Elm, 
Spring and Chapel Streets (a concern of the affected residents in the past) or travel up Chapel Street to take left 
onto Granite with very limited on-coming traffic sight distance. 

2. Traffic coming from the south most logically travels up Geny Ave, to Main, to South and up the steep and narrow 
section of Granite. This is relatively easy for locals, but quite convoluted for those unfamiliar with Newmarket. 

3. The current one-way pattern on Church Street down the hill increases the vehicle trips exiting Church Street 
where sight distance is quite limited. While accident data may be somewhat limited, we did witness one rear-end 
style accident when a car stopped on Main Street and the second car did not stop in time. 

this concern has been exasperated in recent months, as some motorist are using this as a cut through to 
avoid the 152/108 stop sign. Some do this a good rate of speed around the sharp corner. 

We encourage members of the of the Traffic Safety Committee to drive these routes to witness first hand the existing 
conditions. 

Page 85 of 86



We look forward to attending this meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Mike Hoffman 

The Stone Church Music Club 
Mike@StoneChurchRocks.com 

603-659-7700 
stonechurchrocks.com 

• '"' 3 

2 

Page 86 of 86


	Page 1 Agenda 6/6/2018
	Page 3 Minutes 5/16/2018
	Page 10 TA Report
	Page 13 Environmental Service 20-year capital plan
	Page 34 Resolution #2017/2018-47 Increase Water Rate 50 cents
	Page 36 Resolution #2017/2018-48 PD Motorola Radios
	Page 46 Appointment - M LaBranche - NCDC
	Page 48 Resolution #2017/2018-49 Tiger House repairs and painting
	Page 57 Resolution #2017/2018-50 PD parking pavement repairs
	Page 75 Resolution #2017/2018-51 Elementary School Resource Officer
	Page 79 Ordinance No. 4 - 2017/2018 Center Street Two-Way Traffic
	Page 82 Ordinance No. 5 -2017/2018 Church Street One-Way Traffic Westerly

